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Strategic Report
The directors present their Strategic Report for the year ended 31 December 2022.

2022 BUSINESS STRATEGY AND OBJECTIVES
Principal Activities and Purpose

The principal activity of the Company is the sale and distribution of decorative paints and the provision of toll
manufacturing services to the wider AkzoNobel decorative paints business. In addition, the Company is an investment
holding company and manages legacy matters relating to former businesses and assets which were owned by the
Company when it operated as a public limited company.

The Company delivers on AkzoNobel’s strategic aims of Grow and Deliver at a local level through the following key
drivers:

GROW by:

e Building a business for good

Elevating our approach to sustainability to encourage people to buy our brands and work with us.
Bulk Packaging Project — The Bulk pilot went live in 2022 with filled drums despatched to customers

Community RePaint — 10+ RePaints are supporting our slow and obsolete products (SLOB) challenge by redistributing
SLOB stock to good causes nationwide

e Growing the category
Unlocking and realising our brand potential with the category

During the year, Season 2 of the popular television show Changing Rooms with Dulux was back on air attracting over
5m live viewers across the season. The Company went live with our own Instagram Live — Dr Dulux chat after each
show — at its peak attracting 3m live viewers.

A new Simply Refresh advertising campaign was televised.
¢  Champion the profession

By partnering and supporting our professional customers through adding value to the professional business and in turn -
deepening loyalty. ’

The Dulux Select Decorator bi-annual NPS engageﬁ:ent scores are the highest they’ve ever been at +72

DDC College Packs and Apprentice leaflets created and distributed

Dulux Connect H1 Awards nominations received allowing us to showcase ‘transforming spaces’

e  Win the with the customer

By ensuring our brands, products and services are available to our customers when and where they want to buy them.
DELIVER by:

Producing quality products:

Driving awareness of Heritage through “Are you our next Heritage Hero” and sampling

Strong results from Weathershield Quick Dry Gloss sampling campaign

Armstead Allies with VIY campaign exceeds KPIs with On The Tools

Provide an intentional and easy customer experience
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Strategic Report (continued)
Jor the year ended 31 December 2022 (continued)

The Company’s unique purpose is.to ‘inspire beautiful living spaces’ which is supported by a solid foundation
underpinned by brilliant people, leading brands, a resilient organisation and strong financial performance.

Business Review

The Company made a profit before taxation for the financial year of £148m (2021: £136m) during the financial year
and has net assets of £4,403m (2021: £4,588m) as at 31 December 2022.

Operational performance

In 2022, market conditions were challenging as consumer confidence remained low and higher levels of inflation
continued. The Company maintained its decorative paints market share, although revenue from sale of products
decreased by £19m. There was also a decrease of £4m in revenue from services including the Company’s toll
manufacturing activities. Cost of sales reduced by £58m due to a reduction in the price paid for stock purchased within
the Akzo Nobel Group. As a result, the Company recorded an operating profit of £25m (2021: £16m). There was also
an increase in interest income and dividend income, meaning profit before taxation was £148m compared with £136m
in the previous year. ' '

Products

The Company manufactures, distributes and sells directly, a full range of interior and exterior decoration and
protection products for both the professional and do-it-yourself (“DTY”") markets within the UK. The business operates
under brands such as Dulux®, Dulux Trade®, Cuprinol®, Polycell®, Hammerite®, Armstead®, Sikkens® and
Intematlona]® The Company prides itself on product innovation and continues to invest and bring new products to
market. '

Indirect Subsidiary Activities

On 19 January 2022, the Company’s indirectly owned subsidiary, Akzo Nobel Paints Vietnam Limited merged with
four other companies in Vietnam and was renamed Akzo Nobel Vietnam Limited.

On 27th April 2022, the Company’s indirectly owned subsidiaries, Cambrian SW Limited and Cambrian' Decorator
Supplies (C.D.S.) Limited were placed into Members’ Voluntary Liquidation.

On 3"j November 2022, Deesnde Coatings Limited was dissolved.

On 16“‘ November 2022 Cambnan Decorator Supplies (C.D.S.) Limited was dissolved. One 24" November 2022,
Cambrian SW Limited was dissolved. On 28lh December 2022, ICl “International lelted and ICI North Amenca
Limited were dissolved. ) :

Post :Balance Sheet Events

On 19" January 2023, Horseferry Investments Limited (formerly Cuprinol Limited) was dissolved.

On 8" February 2023, Scottish Agricultural Industries Limited terminated deposit facility arrangements with ICI
Finance Limited and declared an mtenm dividend of £7,270,999 to its shareholder, ICI Chemicals & Polymers
Limited.

On 19™ April 2023, Scottish Agricultural Industries Limited was placed into Members’ Voluntary Liquidation.
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Key Performance Indicators

The Company assesses business performance over many indicators; both stand alone and also as a key part of the
Decorative Paints European Business Unit. Full analysis of this business unit is provided in the annual report of Akzo
Nobel N.V. as indicated above. The standalone indicators are presented in the table on the next page.

Indicator 2022 . 2021 Delta
Turnover from sale of product £498m £517m (£19m)
Adjusted Profit before taxation ROS | 26% 21% 2%

The results reflect the challenging market conditions and inflationary environment, but the Company maintained
market share. The Company continues to drive operational excellence and strategy execution. Turnover includes both
third parties and intercompany sales. Adjusted profit before tax return on sale (ROS) is calculated as profit before
taxation excluding income from shares in group undertakings, and disposal of fixed assets, as a percentage of turnover
from sale of products.

Further information on the Company’s decorative paints business can be found at www.dulux.co.uk

Sustainability

Sustainability remains a key driver for the Company and also a core value, integrated in everything we do in the
AkzoNobel Group. We strive to lead our industry by pioneering a world of possibilities to empower people and reduce
our impact on the planet, while consistently innovating to deliver the most sustainable solutions for our customers.

The Group approach to sustainable business is called “People. Planet. Paint.”

People: We act with integrity and respect human rights across our operations and value chain, embracing diversity
and inclusion, to transform the communities in which we operate.

Planet: We minimise our environmental footprint, reducing carbon emissions and moving towards zero waste by
pioneering increasingly sustainable solutions and processes.

Paint: We constantly innovate to bring surfaces to life by offering our customers the most sustainable solutions that
go beyond generations. '

Climate change adaptation and risk management

As recommended by the Task Force on Climate-related Financial Disclosures (TCFD), the Company continues to
monitor the risks and opportunities for the business related to climate change. As an organisation, we’re exposed to
physical risks — such as those associated with water scarcity, flooding and weather events in certain regions and
transitional risks, such as changes in technology, market dynamics and regulation.

Carbeon pricing

We have sustainability assessments in place for all material investment projects. For the last seven years, we’ve
implemented an internal carbon price for these investment decisions at a Group level which is cascaded down to local
business units, anticipating the impact of any future carbon pricing. Annually, we quantify the potential transitional
risk impact of any global carbon taxation by multiplying our carbon footprint (Scopes 1 and 2) with the internal carbon
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Carbon pricing (Cont.)

price. To analyse different potential scenarios, we calculate the impact using a carbon price ranging from €50 to €150
(per ton), the latter being the suggested UN price on carbon. That range results in an impact well below 1% of 2022
revenues. At the same time, we’re mitigating the carbon cost impact for our customers by offering sustainable
solutions.

Physical risks: Natural catastrophes
As climate change will most likely increase the frequency of natural hazards, the organisation has further analysed
the natural hazards our operations are exposed to during 2022

As part of our risk and insurance process risk engineering site surveys are conducted to collect information about our
sites which is reported at a Group level. Risk engineering methodology is used to map hazard risks and evaluate the
frequency and the consequences of potential and natural hazards related to the production process using a materiality-
based approach.

The scope and frequency is based on the replacement value of the site in a cycle of three to five years. Natural hazards
taken into account during this process are the potential for earthquakes; floods (water bodies, precipitation (pluvial)
and floods by earth movement) draught; hailstorms; lightning; wind (tropical storm and extra tropical storm (winter
storms) tornados; subsidence; landslides and active volcanos.

In the UK, the Company operates manufacturing sites in Ashington and Stowmarket; and its indirect subsidiary
operates sites in Birmingham, Hull and Deeside. Following the risk engineering assessments, the operations are
classified between low and/or medium risk. Actions are implemented, if needed, in accordance with AkzoNobel Group
methodology.

In terms of the Company’s value in investment we impair our investments in accordance with applicable accounting
rules. Our subsidiaries follow the Group policies and procedures to adequately manage climate-related risks to an
acceptable level which is both beneficial to the organisation, the Company and the environment.

Further details on the risk assessments and risk management of both internal and external factors can be viewed at:

https://www.akzonobel.com/content/dam/akzonobel-corporate/global/en/our-approach-to-
inabi ili i ing-2022-akzonobel.pdf

Akzo Nobel N.V. produces additional publications which are available on its global website.
e For example, Scopé 3 emissions are broken down in the ESG data table:
https://www.akzonobel.com/en/about-us/sustainability-/esg
e We also provide more information on our Group approach to climate change in our position statement:
https://www.akzonobel.com/en/about-us/position-statements/climate-change
e  We do not report to CDP, on a group or entity level in relation to climate, water or forest . As a Group, we
will be submitting a response to the CDP Climate change questionnaire in 2023 in relation to 2022 data

e We do report on group level to EcoVadis, MSCI and Sustainalytics and publish the latest results on Akzo
Nobel N.V.’s website here: https://www.akzonobel.com/en/about-us/sustainability-/external-benchmarks

As a Group, we have not fully implemented scenario planning for physical risks as this remains a continuous
improvement exercise over the next two years.
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Transitional risks

The businesses operated by the Company’s direct and indirect subsidiaries are exposed to transitional risks, such as
market and technology shifts, reputation risks and policy and legal changes. Identifying and addressing risks, including
transitional risks related to climate change, is part of our regular risk management process which is dealt with by local
management teams in each jurisdiction.

Climate-related commitments

Climate change mitigation is an integral part of our approach to sustainable business and plays an important role in

our company strategy. It brings risks, but also creates opportunities. We have Group-wide targets, which includes

UK activities:

e In line with AkzoNobel targets established in 2017, we committed to becoming a carbon-neutral company by
2050

¢ Inline with AkzoNobel targets established in 2021, we announced an ambitious target of reducing carbon
emissions across our full value chain by 50% by 2030, taking 2018 as our baseline

e Our ambitions are aligned with the Paris Agreement, which aims to limit climate change and ensure the global
temperature doesn’t rise more than 1.5°C above pre-industrial levels. Approved by the Science Based Targets
initiative (SBT1), this will help to drive our innovation and collaboration with our value chain partners, including
customers and suppliers

e The commitment includes our own operations (Scope 1 and 2), as well as Scope 3 upstream and downstream.
Scope 3 covers purchased goods and services, application and use of our products, and end-of-life. Together, this
covers around ~96% of our total emissions

The details of the AkzoNobel Group commitments can be found here, including the levers to get to the required
reduction: https://www.akzonobel.com/en/about-us/position-statements/climate-change

Factoring in climate-related risks into the preparation of the Statutory Accounts
The carrying value of intangible assets, property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets are impaired whenever

events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value of an asset may not be recoverable as a result of
risks including environmental and climate change.
Please see below commitments made and subsequent investments needed
e 2030 target of 50% reduction in carbon emissions
o For Scope 1 + 2 (own operations), this is done for the majority through two key enablers/levers >
Reducing energy consumption by 30%, which results in a cost reduction; and moving to 100%
renewable electricity, which is part of our regular CapEx cycle
o For Scope 3, where we have control is our supplier and customer engagements and moving to
increasingly more sustainable solutions as part of our portfolio. Developing these sustainable
solutions is the core focus of our R&D organization and thus this is covered by regular R&D
spend

e No offsets are included in our 2030 targets.
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As set out on Page 1 of the Strategic Report, the Company is building a business for good and at a manufacturing site
level, we continue to take action to reduce our impact on the environment.

Whilst the Company is the main investor of UK & overseas direct and indirect subsidiaries (see note 24 for list of
companies), the policies and mitigations in respect of climate-related risks are put in place by Akzo Nobel N.V.
Tracking the climate-related risks posed to the manufacturing sites operated by those subsidiaries is managed at a
Group level and materiality thresholds are in place based on replacement value. The Company is advised of the
impacts and actions set by the subsidiaries in line with Akzo Nobel N.V. group guidance and further assessments are
ongoing (following the temperature scenario analysis).

At a UK manufacturing site level, the businesses operated by the Company’s direct and indirect subsidiaries take
action to reduce the impact of operations on the environment.

During 2022, the following has been achieved:

Ashington:
e  Overall electricity consumption in 2022 reduced by 0.76% (-47200 kWh) vs 2021
In 2022, solar energy generation and consumption on site increased by 16.20% (+25880 kWh) vs 2021
Overall total freshwater intake in 2022 reduced by 13.89% (-5340m3) vs 2021
Overall waste generation per tonne or production in 2022 reduced by 6.41% (-0.56 kg/tonne) vs PY

Stowmarket:
s Overall electricity consumption in 2022 reduced by 0.84% (26731 kWh) vs 2021
e Total energy Consumption as fuel equivalent (T}) reduced by 3.46% (from 35.32 to 34.1) vs 2021
e  Water withdrawal per ton of paint produced reduced by 12% resulting in 6800m3 being saved

Birmingham:
e  Total waste reduced by 5.43% between 2021 and 2022
¢  Electricity consumption in 2022 reduced by 4.38% (-168,855 kWh) vs 2021
e  Overall energy consumption in 2022 reduced by 1.37% (-110,340 kWh) vs 2021
e Overall water consumption (from ground water and potable) in 2022 reduced by 4.17% (-2302m3) vs 2021

e  Overall electricity consumption in 2022 reduced by 19% (-122000 kWh) vs 2021 — New compressor and
LED lighting.

e  Overall gas consumption in 2022 reduced by 18% (-68914 kWh) vs 2021 — Reduction in gas heating units.

e Overall total freshwater intake in 2022 equalled 2021 — No water used in production (2021 — 1085m3, 2022
- 1090m3) ;

e  Overall waste generation in MT in 2022 reduced by 37% vs PY - (2021 — 57MT, 2022 - 36MT) — Site
Waste Project in 2022 '

Deeside
e  Overall electricity consumption in 2022 reduced by 16% (-256 MWh) vs 2021
e  Overall gas consumption in 2022 reduced by 22% (-26.4 x 1000m3) vs 2021
e . Waste generation in 2022 reduced by 30% (-46.8 tonne) vs 2021
e  All electricity consumed on site in 2022 was from renewable sources
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Streamlined Energy and Carbon reporting

The SECR disclosure presents our carbon footprint within the United Kingdom across Scope 1 and 2 emissions, an
appropriate intensity metric, the total energy use of electricity, gas and an energy efficiency actions summary taken
during the relevant financial year.

2022 © 2021
Energy consumption used to calculate emissions (kWh) 12,283,235 15,712,286
Emissions from combustion of gas (Scope 1) tCOze 224 633
Emissions from purchased electricity (Scope 2, location- 2,137 2,603
based) tCO,e
Total gross tCO»e based on above 2,361 3,235

Intensity ratio (kgCOze/kl of production) 20.82 25.20

Imperial Chemical Industries Limited achieves direct and indirect savings in energy and associated carbon emissions
continuously through operational and technological improvements, including;

* Continued work from 2020 on the more efficient powder transfer infrastructure through powder silos

* Rolling programme of work on LED lighting upgrades and installation of LED lights in the academy

* More robust factory shutdown procedures to save energy at weekends and closed periods

» More efficient batch processing to reduce water waste from washing infrastructure between batches

Increase in the use of recycled water into paint batches

« Adjustment of the Server Room Temperature following ESOS review from 26 to 24
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METHODOLOGY NOTES

Reporting Period 1% of January 2022 — 31% of December 2022

Boundary (consolidation approach) Operational approach

Alignment with financial reporting SECR disclosure has been prepared in line with Imperial
Chemical Industries Limited’s annual accounts made up to
31% of December 2022.

Reporting method GHG Emissions reporting are in line with the Greenhouse Gas
(GHG) Protocol Corporate Accounting and Reporting
Standard.

Emissions and Conversion factor source DEFRA, 2022 for all emissions factors

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/greenhousegas-
reporting-conversion-factors-2022 )

Calculation method Activity Data x Emission Factor = GHG emissions

: Activity Data x Conversion Factor = kWh consumption

Reason for the intensity measurement choice Based on the nature of our business, as well as following the
recommendations of the SECR legislation we chose the
following intensity metric: production volume (kiloliters).
This metric reflects the total tCO2e emitted in line with our
business performance and shows the development of our
energy efficiency. Through the comparison of the two
financial years, this metric reveals the improvement in-
Imperial Chemical Industries Limited’s energy efficiency.

Rounding Due to rounding there might be a minor difference compared
to the actual GHG emissions (no more than 1%).
Other relevant information on calculation Electricity and natural gas consumption data was received in

kWh, consumption from kWh was converted to emissions
using the DEFRA emission factors linked above. The
emissions from Natural gas have been calculated using the

+ gross CV for each kWh of energy reported. One of our .
manufacturing facilities concluded its operations in May
2022, significantly contributing to the marked reduction in our
emissions from the previous year.

Renewable Energy Amount of renewable electricity (MWh) imported from the grid and
backed by REGOs: 3,135 Number of RE-certificates were purchased
via ACT (1 MWh/certificate): 7,921 2021 market-based emissions
Even though our supply for 2021 was backed by REGOs, it was not
considered in our previous disclosure therefore we have now reported
‘0’ market-based emissions.

Information on Renewable Energy Imperial Chemical Industries Limited was supplied 100% renewable
(sourced from wind farm generation) by Scottish Power, backed by
the green energy certificates (REGOs) until April 1, 2022. Scottish
Power was also independently audited by a third-party auditor
(Deloitte) to ensure that it meets the Quality Criteria 1 to 5, and 8 as
defined in GHG scope 2 guidance published by the World Resources
Institute (WRI). RE-certificates for the remaining months of 2022
were purchased via ACT. Our new supplier Total is contracted to
supply 100% renewable electricity to all our facilities under the new
supply contract. Using the GHG protocol corporate standards’
market-based approach, the above enables us to report ‘0’ emissions
for 100% of electric power consumption under Scope 2.
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Modern Slavery Statement

The Company respects human rights across our operations and value chain. Our Modern Slavery Statement can be
found at https://www.dulux.co.uk/en/akzonobel-modern-slavery-statement

Gender Pay Gap

The Company understands the importance of reporting on the gender pay gap in the organisation and taking
proactive steps to close the gap. Our gender pay gap results can be found at: https://www.dulux.co.uk/en/ici-gender-
pay-report -

Diversity and Inclusion

Our senior executives as well as other colleagues within the business have made pledges to drive the development of
women’s careers by setting targets for improvement:

Decorative Paints UK&I Targets
¢ 36% of Managers female by end 2022
e 25% of Sales Team Female by end 2025

The targets will change over time, as the Company’s ambition is for the percentage of women in leadership roles to
match the percentage of women in the business.

How do we intend to attract more female colleagues?

e Active leadership in promoting our sale of our brands as an attractive career for women

e Competitive Salary & benefits such as flexible working; shared parental leave; childcare support

e  Employer Brand — continuing to develop our employer brand to demonstrate our values and diversity

e Recruitment Process — Gender decoding adverts; challenging stereotypes; variety of assessment methods;
Interview and unconscious bias capability training; diverse interview panels; measuring output

e  Apprenticeships — Using Retail Management & Sales programs to provide opportunities for women to develop
their skills and experience

e Secondments/Projects — Encourage cross functional development opportunities particularly between Marketing
and Sales but across the BU

¢ Internal recruitment — ensuring wherever possible opportunities are offered and visible

e  Active Talent Management — Have regular check-ins and record the interest of individuals in future opportunities
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Health and Safety

The Company has a proactive Safety Management Program in place, driving a positive behavioural based culture.
This is support by a structured Behavioural Based System — which is implemented in all UK Manufacturing
facilities. The Total Reportable Injury Rate during the year was 1.59.

All manufacturing sites commenced a Fork-Lift Truck / Pedestrian segregation program with associated risk
assessments. Any high risks identified were mitigated by the end of the year, with medium risks to be mitigated by
the end of 2023.

A UK Safety Taskforce was initiated to focus on driving best practice in leadership, change, communication and
common safety system deployment.

Principal Risks and Uncertainties

Economy

The main risks and uncertainties relating to the business are a downturn in the UK economy, specifically in relation
to reduction in consumer investment in home decoration and commercial construction projects. This uncertainty is
heightened by the impact of inflationary pressures on household disposable income. The impact of higher energy,
transport and wage costs in business operations have added to increased raw material and packaging costs.

Risk is managed via a group-wide ‘InControl’ framework, using Enterprise Risk Management processes and
mitigation action tracking, and a strong Internal Audit function which assesses the adequacy and efficiency of risk
management and internal controls procedures.

More information can be found on pages 77-80 of the 2022 Akzo Nobel N.V. Annual Report and at
(https://www.akzonobel.com/en/about-us/governance-/policies-—-procedures/risk-management-)

There is also an Integrity and Compliance Committee at Akzo Nobel N.V. Group level.
The Company also faces the following business and governance risks: '

Supply Chain
*  The risk of non-availability of critical raw / pack materials to produce our paint

. The risk that (post) COVID induced negative economic effects due to shortages and high inflation These
shortages are causing significant supply interruptions, reduced margins and reduction demand

»  Itis not clear to customers if there are stock shortages at point of ordering, so we risk potential poor |
customer experience '

¢ Continued supply and stock challenges impact on 2022 ability to fulfil orders on time and in full

10
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Principal Risks and Uncertainties (cont.)
Processing Payments

*  Therisk of the continued issue in supplier & customer payment, leading to suppliers putting us on stop
*  Reputation damage from non/late payments

Governance Risks
* Insufficient diversity on the Board
= Accounting Resources for production of Annual Report
*  Further actions to be taken in relation to Wates Principles .

Actions
*  The impact of raw material shortages and volatility of supply is being mitigated through prioritising
manufacture of key finished goods for consumption of critical raw materials, use of alternative raw
materials and packaging, additional sources of raw materials, additional raw material stock holding
* Improve communication of orders by providing order confirmation and notice to customers in advance of
shortfalls
» Continued improvement in processes and system to ensure timely payment of suppliers

As a Company, we understand that there are some business risks that cannot be mitigated when impacted by global
or political events.

The Company continues to improve its governance in line with the Wates Principles and is aware that due to board
changes during the year, is lacking sufficient diversity in board membership. Within the wider Group HR policies,
the Company is working towards improving diversity and succession planning on the board and in doing so, presents
the opportunity to bring new perspectives to the Board of Directors.

The accounting function deploys its resources to manage the activities involved in the preparation of the Company’s
annual accounts and tax returns. In conjunction with the UK Secretariat, they provide updates to the Board of Directors
on the progress of activities and take early action to mitigate the risk of late filing.

Post-retirement benefits risk

The Company is the principal employer of the ICI Pension Fund (“1CIPF”) and the ICI Specialty Chemicals Pension
Fund (*ISCPF”), two defined benefit pension schemes. Both are closed to new entrants. They are managed and
controlled by independent trustees. The funded status of these schemes is affected by the trustees’ investment
decisions, market conditions, demographic experience and any regulatory actions. They both require additional
funding (top up contributions) to address funding deficits determined in previous triennial funding valuations along
with regular contributions at agreed rates. Changes in the funding deficits may adversely impact our business and
results. AkzoNobel practices proactive pension risk management and continuously reviews options to reduce the
financial risks associated with all defined benefit schemes. Further details of the schemes are in note 23.

Financial Risk Management

Financial risk includes price risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and cash flow risk. These are addressed and managed at a
group level as disclosed in the AkzoNobel Report 2022, Note 26 and may be obtained from Christian Neefestraat 2,
1077 WW, Amsterdam, Netherlands or online at: https://akzonobel.com/en/investors

An overall risk management program seeks to identify, assess and if necessary, mitigate these financial risks in order
to minimise potential adverse effects on financial performance.

11
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SECTION 172(1) REPORT

During discussions and decisions made during the year ended 31 December 2022, the directors of Imperial Chemical
Industries Limited have acted in the way that they consider in good faith and would be most likely to promote the
long-term success of the Company for the benefit of its shareholders, whilst having due regard to the matters set out
in Section 172(1)(a) to (f) of the Companies Act 2006.

a) The likely consequence of any decision in the long term

It is the responsibility of the Company’s board to make decisions in line with our ambitions and ensure the business
is aware of and actively implementing the strategies devised to get and keep us there. The shareholders of our ultimate
parent company, Akzo Nobel N.V. are an essential component when considering our operations. The Company values
and actively looks to facilitate shareholder involvement through its engagement with our ultimate parent company and
the wider group. A range of internal stakeholders are consulted in the pre-board approval process to enable the
Directors to have confidence that material transactions presented are of value to the Company. There may be occasions
where there are conflicting priorities between the needs and benefits of the Company versus the wider Group and the
directors are careful to assess all the risks in their decision-making, aware that not all stakeholder needs can be met.

Conflicts of Interest

The board is aware of the ever-present risk of conflicts of interest that may affect their decision-making capabilities
and follows the policies and procedures in place to identify and manage conflicts as they arise, which is also embedded
in the Company’s Articles of Association.

Strategy

The directors take serious])‘/ the perennial risk posed by prioritising short-term pressures over longer term étrategic
priorities and as a Board, considers how to ensure a balance is struck between the need to meet immediate financial
objectives and our desire to achieve the kind of organic, long-term and sustainable growth that we be]leve is the most
secure‘means to provide value to our shareholders and other stakeholders. i

Future of the Board -

The directors understand the business and the challenges faced in an evolving environment. Based upon the purpose
of the Company to provide cleaner, more environmentally friendly products, the directors make decisions intended to
strengthen the position of being a leading paints and coatings company in its sector, whilst keeping safety and social
responsibility fundamental to the business approach. The directors recognise the long-term success of the Company
is dependent on the sfakeholde_rs and the external impact of the business activities on society.

To strengthen the Company in its purpose, work continues on delivering a governance framework for the UK group
of companies based on thev.Wates Principles. . S ‘

e

b) The interests of the Company’s colleagues

We are committed to making onr Company a brilliant place to work for our people. Colleagues are a key stakeholder,
and our business puts considerable focus and energy on making AkzoNobel a brilliant place to work.

12
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SECTION 172(1) REPORT (CONT.)

Top Employer )
In 2022, AkzoNobel was recognised as a Top Employer for a tenth year which underlines the value and strength of

our people-focused campaigns over the last decade, including:

*  Thrive, our wellbeing programme

*  The Network, a development forum for women in our business

*  Scrums, our innovative colleague engagement initiative, which encourages colleagues to share their progress
against strategy, energise business conversation and debate around the Company’s strategy at all levels

»  Proud Parents, our maternity/paternity mentoring programme

Your Voice Survey

The Your Voice Survey is an initiative that takes place on a quarterly basis to allow colleagues to voice their opinions -
about working experiences in the organisation and for the business to listen to ideas for improvements. Two-way
engagement is a fundamental part inspiring and driving change in the experience of our colleagues and helps to make
our Company a Brilliant Place to Work.

There are four themed activities which colleagues can get involved with to help contribute to positive change:
The programme is led by Your Voice Champions who drive the cycle, insights, listen and ensure that we as a wider

team activate the changes needed. Communications and outputs will come from the Your Voice Champions team.

Apprenticeship Programme

In 2020 AkzoNobel introduced a new apprenticeship prograthe designed to develop existing sales talent. The Level
4 Sales Executive Apprenticeship runs over an 18-month period with successful Apprentices gaining a recognised
Level 4 qualification. 34 colleagues enrolled in the programme in 2022.

Grow2Lead

The Company nominates colleagues within the business unit as emerging leaders in their Grow2Lead programme and
provides opportunities to fast-track their development within the organisation.

Senior Leadership Apprenticeship

The Company provides opportunities for ten ambitious colleagues to study the Senior Leader Apprenticeship, funded
by the company. Suited to those who are aspiring to be leaders in the future, the post-graduate level course is aimed
at mid-level professionals with the desire and capability to progress through learning.

On successful completion of this course, learners will be given the opportunity to “top up” their qualification and go

on to study for their MBA (additional six-month program). The Master of Business Administration (MBA) is a
prestigious postgraduate qualification that provides an overview of key business and management practices.
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Senior Leadership Group (“SLG”)

We harness our collective experience to consistently influence and enable the whole business to deliver our strategic
priorities at pace, by taking the following actions:

- Maximising networking opportunity of SLG in & out of meetings

- Through one aligned message & communication

- By empowering our teams

- With 100% focus on delivering the strategy — prioritised & aligned

- Quick decision making with roadblocks removed

- By maximising networking & cross functional opportunities of SLG in & out of meetings.

- Through an agile and clear governance and review structure allowing us to adapt and course correct to
deliver the vision

- Embracing the Group behaviours in a consistent and inspirational way. Leading by example.

- Utilising insight from the ground up to influence our direction

- Agenda ultimately owned by UK & Ireland Management Team, delivered and presented with SLG

- First face-to-face SLG meeting to be held in Q2/2022

- The session in planned as a workshop review on Performance, engagement & strategy

- Performance:- Commercial update on MSU performance, with SLG members supporting on highlighting
successes, challenges and action plans.

- Engagement:- Discuss OHI & Your Voice output, with SLG members sharing successes in action planning
and best practice

- Strategy update:- Workshop format structured around critical priorities. Where we are, what is working
well, what are the barriers, where is more support needed

- Feedback:- opportunity in advance for SLG to feedback to UKIMT on key questions, or areas of feedback
that will shape the session content

- Could include leadership stories from leaders elsewhere in the business, BU leadership team, other BU,
Global, other functional areas. ‘

- Potential to include external speakers to help drive collective leadership development or collective
understanding of important topics like sustainability '

#Achieve

The Company regularly recognises the good work of colleagues in the #achieve and ‘on the spot’ winners across the
sales and marketing teams on a monthly basis and shares their successes on the Yammer platform.

Women’s Inspired Network

The ‘Women’s Inspired Network’ provides a platform for women to celebrate their differences and increase their
understanding of how personal & professional lives are made richer by embracing diversity. The Network empowers,
inspires and connect women in support of the Company and wider Group’s ambitions for diversity & inclusion and
widens access to networking for all colleagues irrespective of gender. Dunng the year, WIN delivered the following
initiatives and opportunities:
- International Women’s Day: Lasted a whole month and began the #menasallies campaign for male
colleagues to pledge their support to women at work and in their lives
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- Women in Science: shared opportunities for colleagues to become more involved in the field of science
and hear inspirational talks

- Women in Sales: inspirational talks from colleagues in sales

- Getting unstuck and committing to action: workshop on moving forward with goals and ambitions

Mentorship scheme for women taking maternity and adoption leave

The Mentorship Scheme provides support before, during and on return from maternity/adoption leave, to ensure that
we give women (and other parents) every reason to come back to us and maintain their confidence levels and personal
development. The business has facilitated a number of workshops and has a panel of mentors with a wide range of
skills and personal experiences; matching each participant with a mentor who has a similar background and has
encountered similar challenges, both personally and professionally.

Hybrid Working Arrangements

Providing all colleagues with the ability to work flexibly in a professional and respectful manner has been identified
as one of the key drivers to addressing the current gender pay gap, as it allows both men and women to continue to
develop their career whilst respecting the non-work priorities which they also need to balance. Hybrid working
awareness and hybrid working arrangements have been introduced where possible, across the Company’s business
and feedback that, whether driven through a formal or informal approach, the new initiative is viewed positively and
aims to allow all colleagues to achieve a more balanced work-life balance without impacting business operations.
Outside of the formal / informal Schemes, local initiatives such as senior management ‘leaving loudly’ and being open
and transparent about hybrid working have also helped to drive a more open environment in which hybrid working is
viewed as beneficial for both the Company and our colleagues.

2-Way Engagement

We utilise a number of different mechanisms to foster two-way communication to ensure that we can share
information about the Company as well as to listen to the views of our colleagues. We also have a comprehensive
wellbeing and engagement programme driven by colleagues and actively supporting inclusivity as well as the mental
and physical health of our people. We also participate in the Mind Wellness Index in order to listen to our colleagues
regarding their mental health and to identify areas of development.

Thrive
The Thrive programme covers four important pillars of colleague wellbeing:

1. Thriving Minds, addressing mental health topics and preventative campaigns supporting colleagues to build
their resilience and maintain or improve their mental health

2. Thriving Bodies, encouraging colleagues to stay physically healthy through several campaigns such as Strava-
based Active competitions and preventative, awareness raising health campaigns (Movember, Ovarian Cancer
Awareness Month) '

3. Thriving Careers, challenging and empowering colleagues to take ownership of their career growth and
personal continuous development
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4. Thriving Communities, bringing colleagues together in several forums to address diversity and inclusion
opportunities within AkzoNobel on important topics such as gender diversity, LGBTQ+ inclusion and racial
and ethnic minority challenges

Thrive has been designed to help colleagues feel supported in the above four key areas so they feel engaged and
supported at work whilst continuing to have opportunities to develop, feel happy, motivated and connected to the
organisation. The aim of Thrive is to educate and empower colleagues by modelling possibilities for a more balanced
lifestyle. Looking after colleagues’ wellbeing and placing their health and safety centre stage within the organisation
isn’t only the right thing to do, but it also contributes to the bottom line, ultimately colleagues delivering better on
commitments and achieving organisational targets. Through successful delivery of regular, consistent campaigns
under each of the above four pillars, the Company aims to address key challenges such as improved retention rates,
increased colleague engagement and productivity, reduced absence rates and decreased turnover.

Since Thrive was launched, colleague engagement and overall teams’ morale improved significantly across the UK
group, however it is difficult to measure the true impact of the programme on absence and turnover rates, due to data
being skewed by the pandemic conditions.

Wellfest

Wellfest is the Company’s virtual wellbeing festival established March 2021 and available to all colleagues across the
UK and Ireland, connecting our teams and functions. With daily feelgood events and activities, the programme
provided 64 awesome sessions hosted virtually by external speakers and subject matter experts within the business.

Some of the highlights from 2022 include:
\ AkzoNobel

wellfest

S
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Occupational Health
In addition, there are also traditional occupational health tools and resources embedded within the Company, such as

Colleague Assistance Programme, Occupational Health Referrals and Mental Health First Aiders support.

The Company also supports the learning and career development needs of our colleagues through our performance
management process, functional competency diagnostic tools and virtual leaming and development programs which
are available on demand, 24/7, including via smartphone.

Sharing Information and Speak Up

Part of making our Company a brilliant place to work is also sharing the views and thoughts of the board with our
colleagués through our senior management team visiting our manufacturing sites, holding Townhalls or sharing
internal communications outlining business strategy. This allows us to provide our colleagues with the information
they need and makes them aware of the financial and economic factors impacting our business.

The Company also looks to ensure the voices of our colleagues are heard by allowing them to field questions to senior
management during events and, in more serious cases of misconduct, making use of our confidential ‘Speak Up’
grievance mechanism with its dedicated website and hotline. The Speak Up hotline allows colleagues to raise any
concerns they have in respect to breaches of the Group Code of Conduct. The hotline is operated by an independent
third party who forward details of the issues raised to our Compliance team to investigate, which depending on the
circumstances, may include HR. As an outcome of the investigation, the person making the report will be informed if
a Code of Conduct violation has been found to have taken place.

The Company’s renumeration policy is designed to support the Company to attract, engage and retain the right people
with the right behaviours to drive growth and long-term value creation. In order to support this objective, the design
and implementation of our base salary structure is market driven, performance based, affordable, sustainable, clear
and transparent. The Company’s core philosophy is that pay should be based upon peoples” achievements. As part of
the Company’s remuneration policy, each year base salaries are reviewed during the Annual Review Cycle. This
review is based on individual performance and relative salary position in line with the Company’s salary structures.

c) The need to foster the Company’s business relationships with suppliers, customers and others

The Company continues to work closely with customers, suppliers and other stakeholders to deliver products and
solutions that make their businesses more sustainable, while delivering economic value to all parties in the value chain.
Initiatives such as Grand Prix Performance Precision: Designed to increase focus on delivery of KPIs, complete
transparency and the fearless pursuit of ‘better’ with weekly core “pit stop™ checks to review team performance,
challenges and agree priorities; identify opportunities for problem solving in the team and reviewing progress on
actions ensuring the team are clear on direction for the week ahead.

The Company also engages with customers using C-SAT and by following a Customer Manifesto, as well as ongoing
plans to improve operational ‘pain points’ within the business that affect the customer experience.
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The Company’s key stakeholders are as follows:

O Primary Stakeholders
O Secondary Stakeholders

Akzo - : Customers
Nobet N.V. Trade/Retail
(ultimate {in store}
parent) ) Rk
’

Suppiers The Company

Consumers Company
(online) Pension Scheme
and members

Community

Competitors)

The directors consider the interests of and impact on all stakeholders in any decision-making. The Company also
engages with suppliers, customers, trade bodies such as: The Confederation of British Industry, the British Coatings
Federation, Department for Business Energy and Industrial Strategy, Department for International Trade as well as
Green Guilding Council. NGO’s, and local and national government on a regular basis to discuss relevant issues as
well as for clarity and guidance that the Company is adhering to any changes in policy.

The Company was proud to win three awards at the 2022 British Coatings F ederation Awards:
Marketing Campaign of the Year for the launch of Dulux Simply Refresh one coat paint
BCF Apprentice of the Year went to Andrew Roser, National Sector Lead

Corporate Social Responsibility Award for our True Colours Community Fund, launched during the pandemic to
give colleagues the opportunity to make a difference to the lives of those who needed it most

The Company’s stakeholder relationships are an integral part of our business considerations. The Company
acknowledges its responsibility to parent company shareholders and wider stakeholders and communities, and our
board considers how our operations might impact others.

The Company recognises that through dialogue with our stakeholders and employees we can fully understand the
effects that the Company’s actions might have. Accordingly, the Company prioritises building strong, trusting
relationships with our employees, suppliers, customers, and the community operated in.
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This requires us to be clear with our suppliers about our expectations. The Company does this by requiring suppliers
to sign up to our Business Partner Code of Conduct which outlines our core values and requires compliance with key
environmental, social, human rights and governance requirements. The Company also actively involve our suppliers
in our efforts to improve through our involvement in the Together for Sustainability program, part of which requires
suppliers to perform online assessments and on-site audits in order to meet a minimum sustainability score. Annual
re-assessment is required for those who fail to meet the threshold standard.

d) The impact of the Company’s operations on the community and the environment

In addition to our ongoing dialogue with our stakeholders, the Company and the wider Group is aware of its impact
on the community and the environment. The ultimate parent company makes use of eco-premium solutions to track
the performance in creating shared value for our business, our customers and society. There is an ambition across the
group to maintain at least 20% of revenue from eco-premium solutions by constantly innovating, based on insights
into evolving environmental concerns and societal needs. Eco-premium solutions need to exceed the reference in each
market in terms of sustainability performance.

Information about the Company’s impact on the community and local environment is available on page 3 of the
Strategic Report under the section on Sustainability.

True Colours Community Fund

In 2022, the Company participated in the second annual True Colours Community Fund.

A sum of £50,000 was available for UK & Ireland colleagues to apply for a £1,000 donation to a cause close to their
heart. From foodbanks, soup kitchens, youth and local disability groups, our colleagues championed a number of
worthy causes.

¢€) The desirability of the Company maintaining a reputation for high standards of business conduct

There are a broad range of processes and procedures in place designed to provide control over the Company’s
operations. These processes and procedures include measures regarding the general control environment.

Our core values

There are certain non-negotiable standards and responsibilities that apply to all our employees under all
circumstances. Our core values are:

Safety — We care about the safety of our colleagues and everyone we deal with, focusing on people, product and
process safety ’

Integrity — We care about conducting our business in a fair and honest way
Sustainability — We care about leaving a healthy planet for future generatlons so we always strive to be more

sustainable and collaborate on leading solutions.

These values help us to stay successful as a company, today and in the future, by maintaining the balance between
people, profit and planet.

We explain what these mean in practice in the AkzoNobel Code of Conduct, which guides the way we work and how
we treat others inside and outside our Company.
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e  The Business Partner Code —a set of business principles by which we operate and expect our business partner
to operate in order to do business with us

e AkzoNobel group directives, policies and authority schedules — which the Company follows as part of its
wider governance within the Group

e Risk Management System to ensure we have the right oversight of risks, opportunities and controls in place
to operate effectively

e A letter of financial representation signed by director of the Company

) The need to act fairly as between members of the Company

The Company’s shareholder is another subsidiary within the AkzoNobel Group and its interests are aligned with
the ultimate parent company, Akzo Nobel N.V.; a public limited liability company (naamloze vennootschap)
established under the laws of the Netherlands, with common shares listed on Euronext Amsterdam.

The directors are aware that they owe a duty of care primarily to the Company and its long-term success. However,
regard is also given to being part of a wider Group. The directors operate within the Group’s corporate governance

procedures, UK company law and all other applicable local laws.

The Company’s Section 172(1) Statement is also available on the AkzoNobel website at:
(https://www.akzonobel.com/en/countries/akzonobel-uk---ireland/corporate-governance)

On behalf of the board

NAN___

The AkzoNobel Building

M. Smalley , Wexham Road
Director i Slough
. United Kingdom
SL2 5DS

2 October 2023

20




Imperial Chemical Industries Limited
Registered number 218019
Directors’ Report and Financial Statements

Directors’ Report

The directors present their Directors’ Report and the audited Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December
2022.

Results
Refer to the Strategic Report for the results for the year ended 31 December 2022.

Dividends

The directors did not pay an interim dividend during the year ended 31 December 2022 (2021 £nil), nor do the
directors recommend the payment of a final dividend (2021: £nil).

Directors
The directors who were in office during the year and up to the date of signing the financial statements were as follows:

Mrs. N. Akay Kemahli  (resigned 31 March 2022)

Mr. G. Brown (resigned 31 March 2022)

Mr. J. A. Jimenez Lozano :

Mr. P. Love (appointed 31 March 2022, resigned 30 June 2023)

Mr. M. Smalley

Mr. D. Upton (appointed 1 November 2022)

Mr. B. Williams (appointed 15 March 2022, resigned 1 November 2022)
Ms. K. Wilkinson (appointed 6 July 2023)

Employees

The Company’s policy is to consider all job applications by disabled persons sympathetically in relation to the duties,
responsibilities and physical requirements of the vacancies, the aptitudes of the applicants, including the nature of the
disability, the working environment and the facilities required for the effective performance of the job by the applicant.
If any existing employee becomes disabled, the Company will examine any effects of the disability on current job
performance and take all practicable steps to maintain the employees’ continued employment through the provision
of appropriate retraining, changes in working facilities or, with mutual agreement, the provision of altemative
employment more closely related to the employees’ capabilities. The Company will continue to identify and monitor
the employment of Registered Disabled persons to determine its position in relation to the current statutory
requirements.

Through the performance management process, the training needs and career development of all employees are
identified and discussed, and all employees are encouraged to have a development plan to ensure their skills and
competences are continually improving. \

Political contributions

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries made any political donations or incurred any political expenditure
during the current or prior year.

Financial Risk Management
Refer to the Strategic Report for details on financial risk management.
Future Developments

The directors are of the opinion that the Company is in a position to continue its principal activities during 2022 and
beyond.

21



Imperial Chemical Industries Limited
Registered number 218019
Directors’ Report and Financial Statements

Directors’ Report (continued)
Jor the year ended 31 December 2022 (continued)

Research and development
The Company carries out research and development in support of existing activities, specific new product development
and the improvement of production processes of £1m (2021: £1m).

Directors’ indemnities

As permitted by the Articles of Association, the Directors have the benefit of an indemnity which is a qualifying third-
party indemnity provision as defined by Section 234 of the Companies Act 2006. The indemnity was in force
throughout the last financial year and is currently in force. The AkzoNobel Group also purchased and maintained
Directors’ and Officers’ liability insurance in respect of itself and its Directors throughout the year and provides an
Indemnity Policy.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT

Although the Company has more work to do, to fully align with the Wates Principals, it has complied with the spirit
of the six principles as follows:

1. Purpose and leadership

The Company’s own unique purpose to ‘inspire beautiful living spaces.” Page 1 of the Strategic Report outlines the
Company’s strategy for 2022 and its future success and sustainability relies on the behaviours of all colleagues within
our organisation. Those behaviours are outlined in the AkzoNobel Code of Conduct.

2. Board composition
At the time of signing this Report,' there is one female director and four male directors on this Board.
From 1 January 2022 to 31 March 2022, the Company had one female senior executive on the Board.

The directors are aware that the Company is well below its targets in-respect of diversity and inclusion on the Board
and understands that candidates for Board positions can only be chosen from the pool available at management level.
Therefore, there are targets in place for the Company and wider orgamsatlon to attract more female and gender diverse
individuals at an earlier level in their career in order to grow their ambitions to Board level.

The Company is currently: reviewing proposals to introduce a formélly appointed Chairperson to the Board, from
another business unit or function, to drive broader thinking and bring challenge to decision-making opportunities that

are presented to the Board.

The Siz§ of the Board is abgropriate for a Company with a £560million turnover value.

3. Director responsibilities

The Board has a programme of quarterly meetings scheduled each year. At every meeting governance, risk and HSE
are standing agenda items. The Cbmpany’s key areas of focus for 2022 are set out on page 1 of the Strategic Report.
The directors receive regular, timely information on HSE, risks and opportunities, the Company’s financial
performance, key contracts and sustainability which are supported by the KPIs presented on page 3.
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The 2022 valuation negotiations with the Pension Trustees are ongoing and continues to be consulted on its Schemes
as Principal Employer.

The Company has approved its Modern Slavery Report 2021, 2022 Tax Strategy and Gender Pay Gap Reports,
which can be found at : '

www.dulux.co.uk./en/akzonobel-modem-slavery-statement

www.akzonobel.com/en/countries/akzonobel-uk---ireland/corporate-governance

4. Opportunities and Risks

. The Company’s key risks and opportunities are outlined on page 10 of the Strategic Report. The Board considers all

material contracts and approves them prior to signature. Day-to-day risks and opportunities are managed by the UK

. & Ireland Management Team and relevant actions are reported to the Board on a quarterly basis, or sooner if required.

Global and market risks are managed at a central level as part of the EMEA Decorative Coatings Business Unit
Strategy.

5. Remuneration

. The Company follows the AkzoNobel Directive for Rewards and performance-based pay.

The globally approved standard for job evaluation is the Hay methodology. All middle management and executive
positions will be evaluated as per this methodology only. The Performance & Development Dialog (P&D Dialog)
provides the basis for acknowledging performance differentiation and linking individual performance with
compensation. The link between the P&D Dialog and compensation will apply to base salary development and the
setting of personal objectives for short term incentive/bonus. Material changes in local Rewards programs that apply
to executives are subject to review by the Center of Expertise Rewards (“CoE”) prior to implementation. Approval
decisions for executive positions also require involvement of the Global CoE Rewards to ensure compliance with the
Rewards Directive and Rules. ’

6. Stakeholder Relationships and Engagement
Information regarding the Company’s relationship with its stakeholders and levels of engagement can be found on
page 17 of the Section 172(1) Report.

Statement of directors’ responsibilities in respect of the financial statements

The directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report and the financial statements in accordance with
applicable law and regulation.

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that law the directors
have prepared the financial statements in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice
(United Kingdom Accounting Standards, comprising FRS 101 “Reduced Disclosure Framework”, and applicable
law).
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Under company law, directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the profit or loss of the company for that period.
In preparing the financial statements, the directors are required to: ,

e select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

e state whether applicable United Kingdom Accounting Standards, comprising FRS 101 have been
followed, subject to any material departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements;

o make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and

e prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the
Company will continue in business.

The directors are responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Company and hence for taking reasonable steps
for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

The directors are also responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain
the Company’s transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the
Company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006.

Directors’ confirmations
In the case of each director in office at the date the directors’ report is approved:

e so far as the director is aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the Company’s auditors
are unaware; and

» they have taken all the steps that they ought to have taken as a director in order to make themselves aware
of any relevant audit information and to establish that the Company’s auditors are aware of that
information.

Independent auditors

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP have been appointed as the Company's independent auditors, holding office until
to the end of the next period for appointing auditors in accordance with section 485(4c) of the Companies Act
2006.

On behalf of the Board
: The AkzoNobel Building
M. Smalley Wexham Road
Director Slough
United Kingdom
SL2 SDS
2 October 2023
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Imperial Chemical Industries Limited

Report on the audit of the financial statements

Opinion
In our opinion, Imperial Chemical industries Limited’s financial statements:

» give a true and fair view of the state of the company’s affairs as at 31 December 2022 and of its profit for the year then

ended;

« have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (United
Kingdom Accounting Standards, including FRS 101 “Reduced Disclosure Framework”, and applicable law); and

+ have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

We have audited the financial statements, included within the Annual Report, which comprise: the Balance Sheet as at
31 December 2022; the Statement of Comprehensive Income, the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended;

and the notes to the financial statements, which include a description of the significant accounting policies

Basis for opinion ‘

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (“ISAs (UK)") and applicable law. Our
responsibilities under ISAs (UK) are further described in the Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements
section of our report. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.

Independence

We remained independent of the company in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
financial statements in the UK, which includes the FRC's Ethical Standard, as applicable to other entities of public interest,
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements.

. . i ¢
To the best of our knowledge and belief, we declare that non-audit services prohibited by the FRC’s Ethical Standard were
not provided.

We have provided no non-audit services to the company or its controlied undertakings in the period under audit.

Conclusions relating to going concern

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that,
individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the company'’s ability to continue as a going concem for a period of
at least twelve months from when the financial statements are authorised for issue.

In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the directors’ use of the going concem basis of accounting in
the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate.

However, because not all future events or conditions can be predicted, this conclusion is not a guarantee as to the company's
ability to continue as a going concem.

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the directors with respect to going concern are described in the relevant sections
of this report.
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Reporting on other information

The other information comprises all of the information in the Annual Report other than the financial statements and our auditors’
report thereon. The directors are responsible for the other information. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover
the other information and, accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion or, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated
in this report, any form of assurance thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify an apparent material inconsistency or material
misstatement, we are required to perform procedures to conclude whether there is a matenal misstatement of the financial
statements or a material misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report based
on these responsibiities.

With respect to the Strategic report and Directors' report, we also considered whether the disclosures required by the UK
Companies Act 2006 have been included.

Based on our work undertaken in the course of the audit, the Companies Act 2006 requires us also to report certain opinions
and matters as described below.

Strategic report and Directors’ report »
in our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit, the information given in the Strategic report and
Directors' report for the year ended 31 December 2022 is consistent with the financial statements and has been prepared in
accordance with applicable legal requirements. :

In light of the knowledge and understanding of the company and its environment obtained in the course of the audit, we did
not identify any material misstatements in the Strategic report and Directors' report.

Responsibilities for the financial statements and the audit

Responsibilities of the directors for the financial statements

As explained more fully in the Statement of directors' responsibilities in respect of the financial statements, the directors are
responsible for the preparation of the financial statements in accordance with the applicable framework and for being satisfied
that they give a true and fair view. The directors are also respansible for such internal control as they determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the company's ability to continue as a going

concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.
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Independent auditors’ report to the members of
Imperial Chemical Industries Limited
(continued) R

Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance
is a high levet of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these financial statements.

Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We design procedures in line with
our responsibilities, outlined above, to detect material misstatements in respect of irregularities, including fraud. The extent to
which our procedures are capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud, is detailed below.

Based on our understanding of the company and industry, we identified that the principal risks of non-compliance with laws
and regulations related to data protection requirements in the jurisdictions in which the company operates and holds data,
health and safety regulation, environmental regulation and employment regulations, and we considered the extent to which
non-compliance might have a material effect on the financial statements. We also considered those laws and regulations that
have a direct impact on the financial statements such as tax legislation and the Companies Act 2006. We evaluated
management's incentives and opportunities for fraudulent manipulation of the financial statements (including the risk of
override of controls), and determined that the principal risks were related to posting inappropriate joumal entries, either in the
underlying books and records and management bias in accounting estimates. Audit procedures performed by the engagement
team included:

« Discussions with management, including consideration of known or suspected instances of non-compliance with laws and
regulations and fraud;

« Challenging assumptions and judgements made by management in it's significant accounting estimates that involved
making assumptions and considering future events that are inherently uncertain;

« Testing unusual journal entries to ensure that these were appropriate in nature and magnitude.

There are inherent limitations in the audit procedures described above. We are less likely to become aware of instances of

non-compliance with laws and regulations that are not closely related to events and transactions reflected in the financial

statements. Also, the risk of not detecting a material misstatement due to fraud is higher than the risk of not detecting one

resulting from ervor, as fraud may involve deliberate concealment by, for example, forgery or intentional misrepresentations,

or through collusion.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the FRC’s website at:
www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditors’ report.

Use of this report

This report, including the opinions, has been prepared for and only for the company’s members as a body in accordance with
Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 and for no other purpose. We do not, in giving these opinions, accept or
assume responsibility for any other purpose or to any other person to whom this report is shown or into whose hands it may
come save where expressly agreed by our prior consent in writing.
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Other required reporting

Companies Act 2006 exception reporting

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you if, in our opinion: ¢_ . L B

+ we have not obtained all the information and explanations we require for our audit; or

« adequate accounting records have not been kept by the company, or retums adequate for our audit have not been received
from branches not visited by us; or

« certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or

« the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and retums.

We have no exceptions to report arising from this responsibility.

NaEs SoodeTS

Miles Saunders (Senior Statutory Auditor)

for and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors
Reading

2 October 2023
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Statement of Comprehensive Income

for the year ended 31 December 2022

Turnover

Cost of sales

Gross profit

Distribution costs
Administrative expenses

Operating profit/(loss)

Income from shares in group undertakings
Other interest receivable and similar income
Interest payable and similar expenses

Profit before taxation
Tax on profit

Profit for the financial year

Other comprehensive ( expense)

Items that will not be reclassified to the statement of comprehensive income

Remeasurements of defined benefit asset

Income tax on items that will not be reclassified to the statement of

comprehensive income

Other comprehensive (expense) for the year, net of tax

Total comprehensive (expense)/ income for the financial year

29

Imperial Chemical Industries Limited
Registered number 218019
Directors’ Report and Financial Statements

Note 2022 2021

£m £m

4 560 583
(400) (458)

160 125

94) (70)

41) 39)

5 25 16
6 18 12
7 117 113
8 12) (%)
148 136

11 (45) 1
103 137

23 (384) (70)
11 96 17
(288) . (53)

(185) 84




Balance Sheet
at 31 December 2022

Note
Fixed assets
Tangible assets 12
Right of Use Assets 20
Investments 13
Net defined benefit asset 23
Current assets )
Stocks 14
Debtors (including £2,813m due after one year (2021: £2,824m) 15
Cash at bank and in hand
Creditors: amounts falling due within one year 16
Provisions (current) 17
Net current assets
Total assets less current liabilities
Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year 18
Provisions for liabilities 17

Net assets

Capital and reserves

Called up share capital . 21
Share premium account

Retained eamnings

Total shareholders’ funds

The notes on pages 32 to 71 is an integral part of these financial statements.

Imperial Chemical Industries Limited
Registered number 218019
Directors’ Report and Financial Statements

2022
£m

138
2
3,786
424

4,350

4
3,502
34

3,540

(3,245)
3)

292

4,642

(233)
)

(239)

4,403

2021
£m

153

4
3,786
794

4,737

6
3,420
18

3,444

(3,287)
@

153

4,890

(294)
®)

(302)

4,588

1,209

These financial statements on pages 29 to 71 were approved by the board of directors on 2 October 2023 and were

signed on its behalf by:

D. Upton
Director
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Statement of Changes in Equity
Sfor the year ended 31 December 2022

' Restated
Called up share SI!are Rest:.ated Total
. Premium Retained
Capital . shareholders’
Account earnings

funds

£m £m £m £m

Balance at | January 2021 ) 1,209 940 2,355 4,504

Profit for the financial year - - 137 137
Other comprehensive expense

Remeasurements of defined benefit asset - - (70) (70)

Income tax on items that will not be reclassified - - 17 17

to the statement of comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income for the year - - 84 84

Balance at 31 December 2021 1,209 940 2,439 4,588

Share . Total

Called “g:h?:; Premium l::::i':‘e(: shareholders’

P Account g Funds

£m £m £m £m

Balance at 1 January 2022 1,209 940 2,439 4,588

Profit for the financial year - - 103 103
Other comprehensive expense

Remeasurements of defined benefit asset - - (384) (384)

Income tax on items that will not be reclassified to - - 96 96

—the statement of comprehensive income
Total comprehensive ( expense ) for the year - - (185) (185)
Balance at 31 December 2022 1,209 940 2,254 4,403
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Notes to the Financial Statements
1 General information

Imperial Chemical Industries Limited (the “Company”) is a private company limited by shares and is incorporated
and domiciled in the UK. The Company registration number is 218019 and the registered office address is The
AkzoNobel Building, Wexham Road, Slough, United Kingdom, SL2 5DS.

2 Accounting policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below and have,
unless otherwise stated, been applied consistently to all years presented in these financial statements.

2.1 Basis of preparation

These financial statements were prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 2006 and Financial Reborting
Standard 101 Reduced Disclosure Framework (“FRS 101”) under historical cost convention in pounds sterling. The
amendments to FRS 101 (2013/14 Cycle) issued in July 2014 and effective immediately have been applied.

The Company’s ultimate parent undertaking, Akzo Nobel N.V includes the Company in its consolidated financial
statements. The consolidated financial statements of Akzo Nobel N.V are prepared in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards and are available to the public and may be obtained from Christian Neefestraat 2, 1077
WW, Amsterdam, The Netherlands.

The Company is exempt by virtue of Section 400 of the Companies Act 2006 from the requirement to prepare group
financial statements. These financial statements present information about the Company as an individual undertaking
and not about its group.

In’these financial statements the Company has applied the exemptions available under FRS 101 in respect of the
following disclosures:

e  Statement of Compliance with IFRS

o' Cash Flow Statement and related notes;

o Comparative period reconciliations for share capital;

¢ Disclosures in respect of transactions entered in to between two or more wholly owned members of a group;
e Disclosures in respect of capital management;

. ‘ The effects of new bnt not yet effective IFRSs;

. bisclogures in resﬁect of the compénéation of Key Management Personnel.

As the-consolidated financial statements of Akzo Nobel N.V. include the equivalent disclosures, the Company has
also taken the exemptions under FRS 101 avallable in respect of the following dlsclosures

. Certain disclosures required by IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement and the dxsclosures required by [FRS 7
Financial Instrument Disclosures

2.2 Measurement convention

The financial statements are prepared on the historical cost basis, except for net defined benefit asset/ (Liability), which
is measured at fair value of plan assets less the present value of the defined benefit plan obligation, as explained in
Note 2.18.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
2 Accounting policies (continued)

2.3 Going concern

Since the outbreak of COVID-19 in the first quarter of 2021, global financial markets have experienced, and may
continue to experience significant volatility and there are significant consequences for the global economy from travel
and border restrictions, quarantines, supply chain disruptions, lower consumer demand and general market
uncertainty. The extent and duration of the impact of COVID-19 on the global economy and the sectors in which the
Company and its fellow group companies operate is uncertain at this time. As of the signing date of these financial
statements management was not aware of any material adverse effects on the financial statements for the year ended
December 31, 2022 as a result of COVID-19. Management will continue to monitor the situation and the impact on
the Company. '

2.4 New standards, amendments and IFRIC interpretations

There are no amendments to accounting standards, or IFRIC interpretations that are effective for the year ended 31
December 2022 that have a material impact on the company’s financial statements.

2.5 - Foreign currency translation
(a) Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of the Company are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the Company operates (‘the functional currency’). The financial statements are presented in
‘Pounds Sterling’ (£), which is also the Company’s functional currency.

(b) Transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to the Company’s functional currency at the foreign exchange rate
ruling at the date of the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the balance
sheet date are retranslated to the functional currency at the foreign exchange rate ruling at that date. Non-monetary
assets and liabilities that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
" rate at the date of the transaction. Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies that are stated
; at fair value are retranslated to the functional currency at foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair value was
determined.

Foreign exchange differences arising on translation are recognised in the statement of comprehensivé income.
2.6 Debtors

Amounts receivable are amounts due from group companies and amounts due from customers for merchandise sold
or services performed in the ordinary course of business. If collection is expected in one year or less (or in the normal
operating cycle of the business if longer), they are classified as current assets. If not, they are presented as non-current
assets.

Amounts receivable are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less provision for impairment.

The impairment is calculated using the simplified approach which requires recognition of lifetime expected credit loss
(no tracking of changes in credit risk).
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
2 Accounting policies (continued)
2.7 Creditors

Amounts payable are amounts due to group companies and obligations to pay for goods or services that have been
acquired in the ordinary course of business from suppliers. Amounts payable are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

2.8 Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently carried
at amortised cost; any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption value is
recognised in the income statement over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest method.

2.9 [Investments in subsidiaries and associated undertakings

Investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures are held at cost less accumulated impairment losses.
Investments are annually reviewed and considered for impairment if events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the carrying amount may not be recoverable.

2.10 Tangible fixed assets

All tangible fixed assets are stated at historical cost less depreciation. Historical cost includes expenditure that is
directly attributable to the acquisition of the items. Cost may also include transfers from equity of any gains/losses on
qualifying cash flow hedges of foreign currency purchases of tangible fixed assets.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only
when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of
the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All other repairs and
maintenance are charged to the income statement during the financial period in which they are incurred.

Land is not depreciated. Depreciation on other assets is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate their cost
or revalued amounts to their residual values over their estimated useful lives, as follows:

Buildings .30 -40 years
Fixtures & Fittings 10 years
Plant and Equipment 3 - 10 years

As it is necessary to select a method of applying depreciation that results in the carrying amount of the asset being
allocated as fairly as possible to the periods expected to benefit from the use of the asset, for large new plants above
a threshold of £4m, depreciation for the first 2 years is calculated proportionate to planned production until the assets
are fully operational. The remaining book value is depreciated in equal amounts during the remaining years of the
originally expected economic life. This method reflects most closely the pattern in which the asset’s economic benefits
are expected to be consumed by the entity.

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting
period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is
greater than its estimated recoverable amount. ’

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount and are recognised
in the statement of comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2 Accounting policies (continued)
2.11 Operating lease payments

Payments made under operating leases (net of any incentives received from the lessor) are charged to the statement of
comprehensive income on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

2.12  Research and development expenditure

Expenditure on research and development is charged to the statement of comprehensive income in the year in which
it is incurred.

2.13 Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. The weighted average cost method of valuation is
used. In accordance with the contract manufacturing and distribution agreement effective from 1 October 2014, the
economic risk associated with stocks used by the Company remains with AkzoNobel and as a result stocks have been
excluded from the balance sheet. The inventories recorded on the balance sheet are spare parts for use in the
manufacturing process, and in the execution of colour mixing.

2.14 Current and deferred tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is recognized in the income statement, except
to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in shareholders’ funds. In
this case, the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in shareholders’ funds, respectively.

The current tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet
date in the countries where the Company operates and generates taxable income. Management periodically evaluates
positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation.
It establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts in the financial statements. However, deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if they arise from
the initial recognition of goodwill; or arise from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other than a
business combination that at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred
tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date
and are expected to apply when the related deferred tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available
against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes assets and liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the
same taxation authority on either the same taxable entity or different taxable entities where there is an intention to
settle the balances on a net basis.
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‘Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2 Accounting policies (continued)
2.15 Turnover
Sale of goods

The Company’s Business consists of selling paints and ancillary products to customers at contractually determined
prices and conditions without any additional services. Although the transfer of the risks and rewards is not the only
criterion to be considered to determine whether control over the goods has transferred, it is in most situations
considered to be the main indicator of the customer’s ability to direct the use of and obtain benefits from the asset and
largely also coincides with the physical transfer of the goods and the obligation of the customer to pay.

Variable consideration, including among others rebates, bonuses, discounts and payments to customers are accrued
for as performance obligations are satisfied and revenue is recognised. Variable considerations are only recognised
when it is highly probable that it is not subject to significant reversal. In case of expected returns, no revenue is
recognised for such products, but a refund liability and an asset for the right to recover them to be returned products
are recorded.

A provision for warranties is recognised when the underlying products or services are sold, generally based on
historical warranty data. Revenue is recognised net of rebates, discounts and similar allowances, and net of sales tax.
No adjustment related to services was needed.

Services

Operating lease income is recognised in line with the benefit from the use of the underlying assets that are diminished.
The Company is involved in toll manufacturing services for which it earns a fixed return on production costs incurred:
Equipment provided to customers

Akzo Nobel regularly provides mixing machines, store interior and other assets to its customers at the start of a paint
delivery contract. Previously, such assets were not treated as a separate performance obligation and their costs were
expensed during the contract period.

Under TFRS 15, the delivery of such assets qualifies as a separate performance obligation. However, in most cases no
revenue can be recognised at the moment of transfer of such assets.

During the year ended 31 December 2022 the Company expensed £2.0m (2021: £3m) of equipment provided to
customers free of charge.

2.16 Interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method. When a loan and receivable is impaired, the
Company reduces the carrying amount to its recoverable amount, being the estimated future cash flow discounted at
the original effective interest rate of the instrument, and continues unwinding the discount as interest income. Interest
income on impaired loan and receivables is recognised using the original effective interest rate.

2.17 Dividend income

Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive payment is established.
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2 Accounting policies (continued)

2.18 Employee benefits
Defined contribution plans

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which the Company pays fixed contributions
into a separate entity and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further ambunts. Obligations for
contributions to defined contribution pension plans are recognised as an expense in the statement of comprehensive
income in the periods during which services are rendered by employees.

Defined benefit plans

A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined contribution plan. The Company’s net
obligation in respect of defined benefit pension plan is calculated by estimating the amount of future benefit that
employees have eamed in return for their service in the current and prior periods; that benefit is discounted to
determine its present value, and the fair value of any plan assets (at bid price) are deducted. The Company determines
the net interest on the net defined benefit liability/(asset) for the period by applying the discount rate used to measure
the defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the annual period to the net defined benefit liability/(asset).

" The discount rate is the yield at the reporting date on bonds that have a credit rating of at least AA that have maturity
dates approximating the terms of the Company’s obligations and that are denominated in the currency in which the
benefits are expected to be paid.

Remeasurements arising from defined benefit plans comprise actuarial gains and losses, the return on plan assets
(excluding interest) and the effect of the asset ceiling (if any, excluding interest). The Company recognises them
immediately in other comprehensive income and all other expenses related to defined benefit plans in employee benefit
expenses in the statement of comprehensive income.

When the benefits of a plan are changed, or when a plan is curtailed, the portion of the changéd benefit related to past
_ service by employees, or the gain or loss on curtailment, is recognised immediately in the statement of comprehensive
income when the plan amendment or curtailment occurs.

The calculation of the defined benefit obligations is performed by a qualified actuary using the projected unit credit
method. When the calculation results in a benefit to the Company, the recognised asset is limited to the present value
of benefits available in the form of any future refunds from the plan or reductions in future contributions and takes into
account the adverse effect of any minimum funding requirements.

The Company is the sponsoring employer of group wide defined benefit pension plans. As there is no contractual
agreement or stated group policy for charging the net defined benefit cost of the plans to participating entities, the net
defined benefit cost of the pension plans is recognised fully by the sponsoring employer, which is the Company. The
contributions payable in respect of active members by the participating entities are determined following each triennial
valuation conducted by a qualified independent actuary, and charged as a percentage of salary costs. The Company
recognises non sponsoring entity contributions in its statement of comprehensive income, as a net deduction against
the defined benefit pension plan costs. If non sponsoring entity contributions exceed the current service cost, the
excess of contributions over current service cost, are recorded in other comprehensive income. -

As the Company has an unconditional right to any surplus of the scheme it recognises an asset as the amount of the
surplus at the balance sheet that it has the right to receive as a refund. This is the fair value of the plan assets less the
present value of the defined benefit obligation.

2.19  Non-derivative financial instruments

Non-derivative financial instruments comprise investments in equity and debt securities, trade and other debtors, cash
and cash equivalents, loans and borrowings, and trade and other creditors.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks, other short-term highly liquid
investments with original maturities of three months or less and bank overdrafts. In the balance sheet, bank overdrafts
are shown within borrowings in current liabilities.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2 Accounting policies (continued)
2.19 Non-derivative financial instruments (continued)
Trade and other debtors

Trade and other receivables are amounts due from customers for merchandise sold or services performed in the
ordinary course of business. If collection is expected in one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the
business if longer), they are classified as current assets. If not, they are presented as non-current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method, less provision for impairment. The impairment is calculated using the simplified
approach which requires recognition of lifetime expected credit loss (no tracking of changes in credit risk).

Trade and other creditors

Creditors are obligations to pay for goods or services that have been acquired in the ordinary course of business from
suppliers.

Creditors are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method.

2.20 Leases

The Company assesses whether a contract is, or contains, a lease at inception. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for a consideration.

As a lessee

At commencement or on modification of a contract that contains a lease component, the Company allocates the
consideration in the contract to each lease component on the basis of its relative stand-alone prices. However, for the
leases of cars the Company has elected not to separate non-lease components and account for the lease and non-lease
components as a single lease component.

The Company recognizes a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement date. The right-of-use
asset is initially measured at the present value of the lease liability. The right-of-use asset value contains lease
prepayments, lease incentives received, the initial direct costs and an estimate of restoration, removal and dismantling
costs.

The right-of-use assets are subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method from the commencement date to
the end of the lease term or shorter economic life. In addition, the right-of-use assets are reduced by impairment 1osses
if any, and adjusted for certain remeasurements of the lease liability.

The net present value of the lease liability is measured at the discounted value of the lease payments. The liability
includes payments to be made in optional periods if the lessee is reasonably certain to exercise an option to extend the
lease, or not to exercise an option to terminate the lease. The lease payments comprise the following:

« Fixed payments (including in substance fixed payments), less any lease incentives

* Variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate

» The exercise price of a purchase option if it is reasonably certain that the option will be exercised

» Payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the lessee exercising an option to terminate
the lease; and

» Amounts expected to be payable under residual value guarantees.
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2 Accounting policies (continued)
2.20  Leases (continued)

These lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease if that rate can be readily determined.
If that rate cannot be readily determined, the incremental borrowing rate is used. Incremental borrowing rates are
determined by obtaining interest rates from various external financing sources and make certain adjustments to reflect
the term of the lease and type of the asset leased.

At the lease commencement dates, it is assessed whether it is reasonably certain to exercise the extension options. The
Company reassesses whether it is reasonably certain to exercise the options if there is a significant event or significant
change in circumstances within the Company’s control.

At the commencement date, it is assessed whether it is reasonably certain that:

* An option to extend is exercised; or

* An option to purchase is exercised; or
« An option to terminate the lease is not exercised

In making these assessments, all relevant facts and circumstances that create an economic incentive for us to exercise,
or not to exercise, the option, including any expected changes in facts and circumstances from the commencement
date until the exercise date of the option are considered.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets.

. The Company elected not to recognize on the balance sheet right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for leases of low-
- value assets and short-term leases. The Company recognizes the lease payments associated with these leases as an
. expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

2.21 Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets (and disposal groups) classified as held for sale are measured at the lower of carrying amount and
fair value less costs to sell. Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified as held for sale if their carrying
amount will be recovered through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use. This condition is regarded as
met only when the sale is highly probable and the asset (or disposal group) is available for immediate sale in its present
condition. Management must be committed to the sale which should be expected to qualify for recognition as a
completed sale within one year from the date of classification. When the Company is committed to a sale plan
involving loss of control of a subsidiary, all of the assets and liabilities of that subsidiary are classified as held for sale
when the criteria described above are met, regardiess of whether the Company will retain a non-controlling interest in
its former subsidiary after the sale.
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3 Accounting estimates and judgements

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

3.1 Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

The Company makes estimates and assumptions conceming the future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by
definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are addressed
below.

(a) Defined benefit pension scheme

The Company has an obligation to pay pension benefits to certain employees. The cost of these benefits and the present
value of the obligation depend on a number of factors, including; life expectancy, salary increases, asset valuations
and the discount rate on corporate bonds. Management estimates these factors in determining the net pension
obligation in the balance sheet. The assumptions reflect historical experience and current trends.

Provisions for other long-term employee benefits are measured at present value, using actuarial assumptions and
methods. The benefits of these pension plans are based primarily on years of service and final pensionable pay. The
sensitivity of the assumptions is analysed in note 23.

3.2 Critical judgements in applying the entity’s accounting policies
(a) Multi-employer defined benefit pension scheme

Certain employees participate in a multi-employer defined benefit pension scheme with other companies in the region.
In the judgment of the directors, the Company does not have sufficient information on the plan assets and liabilities
to be able to reliably account for its share of the defined benefit obligation and plan assets. Therefore, the scheme is
accounted for a defined contribution scheme.

(b) Uncertain tax positions

The Company is a member.of a group litigation in the UK, known as the Franked Investment Income Group Litigation
Order (“GLO”). Based on external advice, management have taken a judgement over the outcome of the GLO. Further
details are provided in note 11 to the accounts.

3.3 Other accounting estimates and assumptions
(a) Useful economic lives of tangible fixed assets

The annual depreciation charge for tangible fixed assets is sensitive to changes in the estimated useful economic lives
and residual values of the assets. The useful economic lives and residual values are re-assessed annually. They are
amended when necessary to reflect current estimates, based on technological advancement, future investments,
economic utilisation and the physical condition of the assets.

(b) Impairment of debtors and recoverability

The Company makes an estimate of the recoverable value of amounts receivable. When assessing impairment of
amounts receivable, management considers factors including the credit rating of the receivable, the ageing profile of
receivables and historical experience.

(c) Impairment of investments

When assessing impairment of non-financial assets, management considers factors including the net asset value,
nature of the entity and historical experience (such as political environment).

(d) Deferred tax assets

When assessing the recoverability of deferred tax assets, the Company considers future taxable profits and cash flow
forecasts. These forecasts are estimated and inherently uncertain.
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4 Turnover

The majority of the Company’s business operations are within one business segment, Decorative Paints and one
geographic segment, the UK. Therefore, the profit and loss account reports the segmental information of the Company.

2022 2021

£m £m

Sale of goods 498 517
Rendering of services 62 66
560 583

Equipment provided to customers

The Company provides mixing machines, store interior and other assets to its customers at the start of a paint delivery
contract.

During the year ended 31 December 2022 the Company expensed £2m (2021: £3m) of equipment provided to
customers free of charge

5 Operating profit / (loss)

Operating profit / (loss) is stated after charging:

2022 2021
" £m £m
Wages and salaries 34 36
Social security costs 5 5
Other Pension costs 12 14
Staff Costs 51 55
Restructuring costs . 0 4
Operating lease expenses - -
Past service cost on defined benefit pension scheme (Note 23) - 2
2022 2021
. £000 £000
Audit fees payable to the Company’s auditors 254 241

In 2022 past service costs of £0m (2021: £2m) were incurred in relation to early retirements in the ICI Pension Fund
(“ICIPF”).
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6 Income from shares in group undertakings
2022 2021
£m £m
Income from shares in group undertakings 18 12
7 Other interest receivable and similar income
2022 2021
£m £m
Interest receivable from group undertakings 102 94
Net financing credit on post-employment benefit (see note 23) 14 11
Reversal of interest cost 1 8
— 117 113
8 Interest payable and similar expenses
2022 2021
£m £m
Interest payable to group undertakings 5) 4)
Net exchange losses . () (1)
12) )
9 Directors and employees

Directors of the ‘Company also provide qualifying services to other Group companies. Directors’ time is not
apportioned and their costs are not allocated between Group companies.

The remuneration of directors paid by the Company is as follows:

2022 2021

£000 £000

Aggregate Directors’ emoluments paid by the Company 267 611
Amounts receivable under long term incentive schemes 57 163
Company contributions to money purchase pension schemes 25 24
Company contributions to final salary pension schemes - 1
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9 Directors and employees (continued)

The remuneration of directors paid by other Group companies for services to the group as a whole and not recharged

including a significant proportion to this Company, is as follows:

Aggregate Directors’ emoluments paid by other Group Companies
Amounts receivable under long term incentive schemes

Company contributions to money purchase pension schemes
Company contributions to final salary pension schemes

The following includes all Directors:

Retirement benefits are accruing to the following number of directors under:
Money purchase schemes :

' The number of directors in respect of whose services, shares in the ultimate parent company
. swere received or receivable under long term incentive schemes

Highest paid director

The highest paid directors’ emoluments were as follows:

Total amount of emoluments and amounts (excluding shares) receivable under Long-term
incentive schemes

Money purchase schemes
Defined benefit pension scheme:

accrued pension at the end of the year
accrued lump sum at the end of the year

2022
£000

820
57
19
11

Number of
directors
2022

3

2022
£000

259

2021
£000

905

126
35.
43

‘Number of

directors
2021

3

2021
£000

348

29

The highest paid director exercised share options in the ultimate parent company. Directors’ emoluments were not recharged to the

Company (2021: were not recharged).
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10 Staff numbers

The average monthly number of persons employed by the Company (including executive directors) during the year
was 655 (2021: 602), analysed as follows:

2022 2021

Number Number

Production ' 235 231
Sales and distribution 214 167
Administration 101 94
Research and development 105 110
655 602

During the year restructuring related severance costs of £0.1m (2021: £4m) were recorded equally in administrative
and distribution expenses.

11 Tax on profit
Recognised in the statement of comprehensive income
. Analysis of charge/(credit)/ in year 2022 2021
£m £m
UK corporation tax
Current tax charge for the year 17 15
Prior year tax charge/(credit) 11 (49)
28 (34
Deferred tax
Origination/reversal of timing differences 17 33
Total deferred tax charge 17 33
Tax charge/(credit) on profit 45 m
Income tax recognised in other comprehensive (expense)/income . 2022 2021
£m £m
Remeasurements of defined benefit asset (96) 17)
Tax credit on other comprehensive expense (96) an



Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

Imperial Chemical Industries Limited
Registered number 218019
Directors’ Report and Financial Statements

11 Tax on profit (continued)
Reconciliation of standard tax rate
2022 2021

. £m £m
Profit before taxation 148 136
Tax using UK corporation tax rate 19% (2021: 19%) ' 28 26
Non allowable deductions 1 -
Accelerated capital Alowances -
Income not taxable — dividend income 3) 2)
Origination/reversal of timing differences 3 1
Expenses not deductible - -
Tax rate changes - 23
Adjustment relating to prior year 11 (49)
Total tax charge/(credit) 45 (1)

Franked Investment Income Litigation

The Company is a member of a group litigation in the UK, known as the Franked Investment Income Group Litigation
Order (“GLO”). The GLO collects claims made by 25 corporate groups in the UK High Court seeking the repayment
of advance corporation tax (“ACT”) and tax on dividend income on the basis that its levy by the UK was contrary to
EU law. The Company’s claim covers the period 1975 to 1997 and both the Company’s claim and the GLO
commenced in 2003. A test case was selected from the members of the GLO to proceed to trial on a representative .
basis; this test case was not the Company’s claim.

Following issuance of guidance in December 2006 by the European Court of Justice (“ECJ”), the UK High Court in
November 2008 found in favour of the claimants on certain key aspects of the claim. The judgment concluded, inter
alia, that dividends received from EU subsidiaries should be, and should always have been, effectively exempt from
UK taxation. It also concluded that certain dividends received from EU subsidiaries before 5 April 1999 should have
been treated as franked investment income, with the consequence that ACT need not have been paid. In addition, it
concluded that retrospective legislation introduced to limit claims to tax paid within six years of the issue of the claim
was unlawful. The judgment was appealed by HMRC. Following this UK High Court judgment, the Company, along
with other members of the GLO, applied for and received interim payments. In August 2009, the Company received
an interim payment of approximately £64m, made up of interest and reclaimed ACT.

An appeal was heard by the Court of Appeal in October 2009 and the judgment was given in February 2010 mainly
in favour of HMRC, following which HMRC appealed against the payments of interim payment awards. The judgment
upheld the validity of the legislation which restricted claims retrospectively to tax paid within 6 years of the issue of
the claim. The Company’s claim however included sufficient payments of tax within that period which would still
have been regarded as unlawful under the High Court’s judgment. Accordingly, the Company retained the interim
payment on the grounds that its claim could be restructured such that a similar interim payment would be due to the
Company. The appeals by HMRC against the interim payments were dismissed by the Court of Appeal in January
2012.

The issue of the validity of the retrospective legislation restricting claims to a six year time limit from the issue of the
claim was heard by the UK Supreme Court in February 2012 and, in May 2012, decided in favour of the principal test
claimant. Therefore, claims submitted before 8 September 2003, (including the Company’s) could extend back as far
as 1973.
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11 Tax on profit (continued)

The Court of Appeal February 2010 judgment also determined that various questions should be referred back to the
ECIJ for further clarification, and this took place in February 2012. An ECJ judgment was made in November 2012
which confirmed that the UK treatment of EU dividends was discriminatory. The judgment includes third country
dividends from 1994 in certain circumstances; it also confirms that the claim can cover dividends from all indirect as
well as direct EU subsidiaries and also ACT paid by a superior holding company.

The case then reverted to the UK High Court to apply the November 2012 ECJ judgment, with the trial held in May
and June 2014. The UK High Court issued its rulings in December 2014 generally in the favour of the test claimant.
However, the case was then immediately appealed to the Court of Appeal which was heard in June 2016. The judgment
of the Court of Appeal, which was delivered on 24 November 2016, was generally in favour of the test claimant.
Permission was granted to appeal the Court of Appeal decision to the Supreme Court.

In November 2015, a separate claim issued by the Company in respect of Foreign Income Dividends was heard by the
High Court. The judgment (which was favourable to the Company) was issued in January 2016 and HMRC made
additional tax repayments of £8.7m less the new 45% restitution interest tax, resulting in a cash repayment of £4.8m.

Permission was granted for an appeal against the Court of Appeal judgment, to the UK Supreme Court. The
submissions for the appeal were split into two parts.

The first part, which was heard in February 2021, addressed HMRC’s argument that claims should be limited to tax
paid in the 6 years prior to the claim being issued. In the judgment, which was delivered in November 2021, the
Supreme Court overruled a previous decision of the House of Lords in respect of the test for discovery of a mistake,
which had been established in the Deutsche Morgan Grenfell case, and established a new test in its place. It then
returned the case to the High Court for findings of fact to take place. It is anticipated that this may add approximately
three years to the litigation. It is currently anticipated that the High Court hearing will take place in November 2023.

Submissions for the second part of the appeal were heard by the Supreme Court in December 2021. In its judgment,
delivered in July 2022, the Supreme Court found in favour of the claimants in respect of four issues, but found for
HMRC in respect of two important issues, overruling previous judgments. Claims for utilised unlawful ACT have
been reduced to the recovery permitted under the statutory remedy in Section 85, Finance Act 2019, which is limited
to ACT paid after 1 January 1996, and all claims for surplus unlawful ACT (to include unlawful ACT utilised against
unlawful Schedule D Case V tax and cash payments of unlawful Schedule D Case V tax) have been preserved but
with simple interest at bank base plus 1% until 5 February 2009 and plus 2% thereafter, meaning that compound
interest will no longer apply to any repayments.

Following the Supreme Court judgment issued in July 2022, and specifically in respect of the Company’s statutory
accounts for the year ended 31 December 2021, which were not filed until after the Supreme Court judgment, the
Company was required to reassess the repayments it has received from HMRC in respect of this-litigation. This was
based on (a) the decisions of the courts to date and (b) the value of claims already approved by the Courts (with
supporting evidence to justify repayments). It was stated in the statutory accounts for the year ended 31 December
2021 that further elements of the full claim would be reviewed once appropriate supporting evidence to justify the
additional claims has been obtained.

As at the date of the signing of the 2021 statutory accounts, the value of the claim related to the interim payment which
was received in 2009 (see above) for which supporting evidence has already been supplied to the courts, amounted to
£37.7m, and in respect of the Foreign Income Dividend (see above) amounts to £4.5m. Taking into account
corporation tax related to the interest element of these adjustments, a net tax charge of £24.9m was reflected in the
2021 statutory accounts.

Separately, it was determined that if the courts ultimately found that the Company would be required to make
repayments to HMRC in accordance with the 2021 assessment noted above, interest would be chargeable. The 2021
statutory accounts included an estimate of £7.9m (with associated tax relief) based on the status of the litigation and
the evidence provided to the courts as at the date of the signing of the 2021 statutory accounts.
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11 Tax on profit (continued)

As stated above, further elements of the full claim have been reviewed since the signing of the 2020 statutory accounts,
and as at the date of signing of the 2021 statutory accounts, additional research and analysis has been undertaken,
including the identification of additional supporting evidence to support further elements of ACT credit claims
available to the Company, which has not yet been submitted to HMRC or to the courts, but which has produced further
surplus ACT credits, increasing the amount of claim compared with the estimates included in the 2020 statutory
accounts. The increase in the value of the claim amounts to £48.9m (which includes the reversal of the charge reflected
in the 2020 statutory accounts of £24.9m).

In addition, following the conclusion noted above, which suggests that the Company will not be required to make any
repayments of credits to HMRC, the interest charge which was reflected in the 2020 statutory accounts of £7.9m is no
longer required, and was reversed in the 2021 statutory accounts (with an adjustment for the associated tax relief
thereon).

The 2022 statutory account have been updated to reflect adjustments to the full potential claim as calculated to 31
December 2021, and to reflect additional interest income accruing to 31 December 2022. The amount reflected through
the 2022 profit and loss account amounts to £1m.

The interest element of any amounts finally awarded by the courts will be subject to corporation tax, although HMRC
still consider that 45% restitution interest tax is applicable in respect of interest upon surplus unlawful ACT. This
matter is subject to appeal. These accounts have been prepared assuming that the restitution interest rate of 45% will
be applicable.

The case has been referred back to the High Court for finding of fact to take place (see above). In addition, the questibn
of tax on restitution interest is subject to appeal.

Given the continuing complexity of the case and the uncertainty over the issues raised, it is not possible to predict the
final outcome of the litigation with a reasonable degree of certainty or to reliably quantify its impact at the date of
signing of these accounts. As a result, except as mentioned above, no further adjustments have been reflected in these
accounts.
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Factors that may affect future current and total tax charges

In recent Budget Statement, the corporation tax rate for periods to 31 March 2021 had been fixed at 19%, but proposed
reductions (to both 18% and 17%) had been proposed to be effective from 1 April 2021. However, in the Budget
Statement of March 2021, the corporation rate tax was confirmed as 19%, effective 1 April 2021, and the previously
substantively enacted corporation tax rate of 17% (effective 1 April 2021) was over-written and never came into effect.

In the Budget Statement of March 2022, a further change to the corporation rate tax was announced, increasing the
corporation tax rate from 19% to 25%, effective 1 April 2023. This change had been substantively enacted at the
balance sheet date and is therefore reflected in these financial statements.

As aresult of the above, the eftective current tax rate applicable for 2021 and 2022 is 19%. The rate applied to deterred
tax balances is also 19% as at 31 December 2021, and is 25% as at 31 December 2022, being the rates at which
deferred tax is expected to crystallise based on the substantively enacted tax rates applicable at the relevant balance
sheet dates.

12 Tangible assets

Payments on

¢ ’ account
and assets
Land and Plant and in course of
buildings Machinery construction Total
£m £m £m £m
Cost . . .
At beginning of year ' 29 | 435 9 473
Additions - - 10 10
Transfer between categories - ©6) 6 -
Disposals ()] - 3) 4)
At end of year 28 429 22 479

Accumulated Depreciation -

At beginning of year . : (14) (306) - (320)
Charge for the year ) a9 - (V3))
Disposals - - - -
At end of year (16) (325) - (341)
Net book value

At 31 December 2022 ' 12 104 22 138
At 31 December 2021 15 129 9 153
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12 Tangible assets (continued)

Some fixed assets in land and buildings and plant and machinery within the toll manufacturing activities are accounted

for as being leased.

The net book value of land and buildings comprises:

2022

£m
Freehold 7
13 Investments

Shares

£m
Cost
At beginning of year 3,896
At end of year 3,896
Provisions
At beginning of year (110)
Atend of year (110)
Net book value
At 31 December 2022 3,786
At 31 December 2021 3,786

2021

~

Total
£m

3,896

3,896

3,786

3,786

Shares in directly held subsidiary undertakings which are listed investments have a balance sheet value of £28m (2021

£28m) and a market value at 31 December 2022 of £509m (2021: £469m).

The companies, in which the Company’s interest at 31 December 2022 is more than 20%, are disclosed in note 24.

14 Stocks
2022
£m
Finished goods and goods for resale 4

Value of stock expensed in cost of sales in the year was £355,434,000 (2021: £408,573,000).
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15 Debtors
2022 2021
£m £m
Amounts owed by group undertakings: due in less than one year 651 553
Amounts owed by group undertakings: due in greater than one year 2,800 2,800
Trade debtors 27 13
Other debtors: Due in less than one year 10 29
Other debtors : Due in greater than one year 13 24
Prepayments and accrued income 1 1
3,502 3,420
Due within one year 689 596
Due after more than one year 2,813 2,824
3,502 3,420

Amounts owed by group undertakings due within one year include a balance of £187,572,000 (2021: £23,516,000)
that is repayable on demand. Interest is charged monthly based on 1-month LIBOR plus a spread of +15/-10 basis
points.

Amounts owed by group undertakings due after more than one year include intercompany loans of £2,500,000 (2021:
£2,500,000,000) maturing on 15 August 2025. Average interest is fixed at 3.50% (2021: 3.50%).

Amounts owed by group undertakings due after more than one year include intercompany loans of £300,000,000
entered into during the year. The loan is maturing on 15 January 2025. Average interest is fixed at 1.84%.

Remaining amounts owed by group undertakings are unsecured, interest free, have no fixed date of repayment and
are repayable on demand.

16 Creditors: amounts falling due within one year
2022 2021
£m £m
Trade creditors 41 ‘ 46
Amounts owed to group undertakings 3,160 3,213
Other creditors 12 11
Group relief 32 15
Lease liability - 2

3,245 3,287

Amounts owed to group undertakings are unsecured, interest free, have no fixed date of repayment and are repayable
on demand.

Group relief will be paid to fellow group companies for equivalent consideration.
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17 Provisions for liabilities
Post Restructuring Other Total
retirement provisions provisions
and  benefit
provisions
£m £m £m £m
At beginning of year 9 3 - 12
Statement of comprehensive income - - - -
Utilised during year ‘ ) 1) - 3)
At end of year 7 2 - 9
Current 1 2 - 3
Non-current 6 - - 6

Post retirement and benefit provisions
Provisions relate to the defined benefit obligations related to unfunded pension plans. Refer to note 23.

3 Restructuring provisions

The Company provided £0.18m (2021: £4m) in relation to employee costs associated with restructuring activities
during the year within the Decorative paints business. It is expected the majority of this provision will be used in 2023.

Other Provisions

These include provisions for surplus real estate leases plus other operational liabilities and were used during 2022.

18 Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year
2022 2021
£m £m
Amounts owed to group undertakings (231) 211
Deferred Tax liability ) 81)
Lease liability - 2)
(233) (294)

Amounts owed to group undertakings include a loan of £229,000,000 maturing on 15 August 2025. Interest is fixed
at 2.06% (2021: £210 million).
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19 Deferred tax assets and liabilities

Recognised deferred tax assets and liabilities

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are attributable to the following:

Tangible fixed assets
Employee benefits
Provisions

Tax value of loss carry-forwards

Net tax assets / (liabilities)

Movement in deferred tax during the year

Tangible fixed assets
Employee benefits

Provisions

Tax value of loss carry-forwards

Impact of IFRS 15

Imperial Chemical Industries Limited
Registered number 218019
Directors’ Report and Financial Statements

Movement in deferred tax during the prior year

Tangible fixed assets
Employee benefits

Provisions

Tax value of loss carry-forwards

Impact of IFRS 15

Assets Liabilities Net
2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021
£m £m £m £m £m £m
69 64 - - 69 64
- - (104) (177) (104) 77
3 2 - - 3 2
30 30 - - 30 30
102 96 —{104) (177 —{2) —@8h
1 January Recognised Recognised 31 December
2022 in Income in OCI 2022
£m £m £m £m
63 5 - 68
Qa7 (23) 96 (104)
2 1 - -3
30 - - 30
1 - - 1
T (8D a7 96 )
1January  Recognised Recognised 31 December
2021 in Income in OCI 2021
£m £m £m £m
42 21 - 63
(133) (61) 17 (177)
2 - - 2
23 7 - 30
1 - - 1
(65) (33) 17 (81)
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19 Deferred tax assets and liabilities (continued)

Deferred tax assets are only recognised on losses to the extent that future probable taxable profits will be available
against which the deferred tax asset can be utilised. In 2017, based upon future profit forecasts of the Company,

deferred tax asset was recognised on gross cumulative tax losses of £121,305,541.

2022
£m
Losses carried forward 121
Fixed assets -
Restructuring provisions/business provisions/other -
121
Equivalent Deferred Tax Asset value 30

2021
£m

121

121

30

The Company also has unrecognised capital losses of approximately £669m (2021: £669m) which can only be utilised
for certain capital transactions. Any future taxable capital gain, should it fulfil the applicable tax criteria, will be
covered by these capital losses, subject also to the restriction as provided in Schedule 4, Finance Act 2021 (losses

restricted to 50% of chargeable gain in respect of disposals after 1 April 2021).
20 Leases

(i) Amounts recognised in the balance sheet

The balance sheet shows the following amounts relating to leases:

Right-of-Use assets

31 31
December December
2022 2021
£m £m
Buildings 2 4
Additions to the right-of-use assets during the 2022 financial year were £nil.
Lease Liabilities
31° December 31
December
2022 2021
£m £m
Current - 2
Non-Current 2 2
=2 4
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20 Leases (continued)

ii) Amounts recognised in the statement of comprehensive income.

The statement of comprehensive income shows the following amounts relating to leases:

2022
£m
Depreciation of right of use assets
Buildings 2
Plant & Machinery -
—_—2
21 Called up share capital
2022 2021
£m £m
Authorised, allotted, called up and fully paid

1,209,327,168 (2021: 1,209,327,168) ordinary shares of £1 each 1,209 1,209

All share capital is classified as shareholders’ funds. There has been no movement in the number of shares in the
current year. The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as declared from time to time and are
entitled to one vote per share at meetings of the Company. ‘

22 Capital and other commitments

Capital commitments at the end of the financial year, for which no provision has been made, are as follows:

2022 2021
£m £m
Authorised and contracted for 2 2

The Company had the following future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases for each of
the following periods:
. 2022 2021

£m £m

Not later than one year -
Later than one year and not later than five years -
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23 Post-retirement benefit provisions

Post-retirement benefit provisions relate to defined benefit pension and other post-retirement benefit plans, the latter
comprising a healthcare plan. The largest pension plans are two funded plans - the ICI Pension Fund (“ICIPF”) and
the ICI Specialty Chemicals Pension Fund (“ISCPF”) which account for 93.9 percent and 6.0 percent of defined
benefit obligations (DBO) and 93.5 percent and 6.5 percent of plan assets of the Company, respectively. There are
also two smaller, unfunded pension plans included which account for just 0.1 percent of defined benefit obligations
(DBO). The benefits of the pension plans are based primarily on years of service and final pensionable pay. The
funding policy for the plans is consistent with local requirements in the United Kingdom.

Valuations of the obligations under the plans are carried out regularly by independent qualified actuaries. We accrue
for the expected costs of providing such post-retirement benefits during the service years of the employees.
Governance of the benefit plans is the responsibility of AkzoNobel’s Executive Committee Pensions (“The
Committee”). The Committee provides oversight of the costs and risks of the plans including oversight of the impact
of the plans on AkzoNobel in terms of cash flow, pension expenses and the balance sheet. The Committee also
develops and maintains policies on benefit design, funding, asset allocation and assumption setting.

Pension plans

The ICIPF and ISCPF plans were closed to new members in 2002 and 2000, respectively, although long-serving
employees continue to accrue benefits. Other employees are eligible to join a defined contribution arrangement. For
a number of years the defined contribution plan available was the Akzo Nobel Benefit Builder Scheme, but this was
terminated in 2020 and replaced by a Mercer Master Trust defined contribution arrangement. Unless mandated by
law, it is AkzoNobel’s policy that any new plans are established as defined contribution plans.

The most significant risks that AkzoNobel runs in relation to defined benefit plans are investment returns falling short
of expectations, low discount rates, inflation exceeding expectations, retirees living longer than expected and
legislation changes.

The assets and liabilities of each of the funded plans are held outside of the Company in a trust, which is governed by
a board of trustees. The ICIPF uses a corporate trustee, ICI Pensions Trustee Limited, a company which is owned by
The Law Debenture Trust Corporation p.l.c and the ISCPF uses a corporate trustee, ICI Specialty Chemicals Pensions
Trustee Limited, a company which is owned by The Law Debenture Pension Trust Corporation p.l.c. Both are
professional trustee companies which are entirely independent from the Company and its parent. The primary
objective with regard to the investment of pension plan assets is to ensure that each individual plan has sufficient funds
available to satisfy future benefit obligations in accordance with local legal and legislative requirements. For this
purpose, AkzoNobel works closely with plan trustees to develop investment strategies. Studies are carried out
periodically to analyze and understand the trade-off between expected investment returns, volatility of outcomes and
the impact on cash contributions. The aim is to strike a cautious balance between these factors in order to agree
affordable contribution schedules with plan trustees.

Plan assets principally consist of buy-in bulk annuity policies and Liability Driven Investment (LLDI) portfolios. The
LDI portfolios invest in long-term interest-earning investments (such as government bonds (gilts)), “over the counter”
(OTC) derivatives, cash balances and repurchase agreements (repos). Derivatives can be used to reduce volatility of
underlying variables, for efficient portfolio management and to improve the liability matching characteristics of the
assets. Limits have been set on the use of derivatives which are periodically subject to review for compliance with the
pension fund’s investment strategy.

In line with AkzoNobel’s proactive pension risk management strategy, we seek to reduce risk in our pension plans
over time. We evaluate potential de-risking opportunities on an ongoing basis. Future de-risking transactions may
have both cash flow and balance sheet impacts which may be substantial, as had some of the de-risking actions already
taken. The cost of fully removing risk would exceed estimated funding deficits.
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23 Post-retirement benefit provisions (continued)

Between 2014 and 2022, ICIPF and ISCPF have invested in annuity buy-in contracts that aim to hedge all key risks
related to their pensioner populations. In 2022, the Trustee of the ICIPF entered into a further annuity buy-in agreement
with Legal and General Assurance Society Limited. It covered, in aggregate, £54 million of pensioner liabilities
(insurer valuation). The buy-in involved the purchase of a bulk annuity policy under which the insurer will pay to
ICIPF amounts equivalent to the benefits payable to members who have recently become pensioners. The pension
liabilities remain with, and the matching annuity policies are held within, ICIPF. The accounting impact of the
transaction is a lower valuation of the plan assets giving a reduction in Other comprehensive income of £12 million.
By purchasing bulk annuities, the ICIPF and ISCPF Trustees have taken significant steps in actively de-risking
liabilities and reducing the risk that the Company will be required to contribute additional cash in the future.

On November 25, 2020, correspondence between the Chancellor of the Exchequer and the UK Statistics Authority
(UKSA) was published regarding the future of the Retail Price Index (RPI) measurement of inflation. With effect
from February 2030 onwards, increases in the RPI will be aligned with those under the Consumer Prices Index (CPY)
with owner occupiers’ housing costs (CPIH). Broadly this is expected to result in RPI inflation being 1% lower in the
longer term than under the existing methodology. The inflation assumption continues to be calculated using a market
breakeven inflation rate and the CPI inflation assumption, on which the benefits of some plans are based, is set with
reference to RPIL. Until 2030, the CPI inflation assumption is calculated as 1% below RPI and from 2030 onwards as
0.1% below RPIL

The remaining pension plans comprise two unfunded pension schemes and a defined contribution arrangement with a
Mercer Master Trust which provides benefits based on contributions made. The expenses of all plans accounted for
as defined contribution plans totailed £5 million in 2022 (2021: £5 million).

The Company provides unfunded healthcare benefits for eligible, retired employees from retirement date until the age
of sixty five through a scheme operated by a healthcare insurer for the Company’s employees in the UK. In 2022, 85
retired employees were beneficiaries of the scheme (2021: 91). The plan exposes the Company to the risk of a decline

in discount rates, which would increase the plan obligations.
Reconciliation balance sheet

The adjacent table details the annual movements for the total post-retirement benefit provisions. The closing net
balance sheet provision of a £417 million net asset (2021: £785 million net asset) comprises: Pension plans
£418 million net asset (2021: £787 million net asset) and an Other post-retirement benefit plan £1 million net liability
(2021: £2 million net liability). )
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2022 2021
£m £m £m £m £m - £m
DBO  Plan assets Total DBO  Plan assets Total
Balance at the beginning of the year (7,802) 8,587 785 (8,373) 9212 839
Statement of comprehensive income
Current service cost 2) - Q) 3) - 3)
Past service cost - - - - @) - (03]
Net interest (charge)/income on net defined
benefit asset (139) 153 14 (105) 116 11
Income recognised in statement of :
comprehensive income (141) 153 12 (110) 116 . 6
Remeasurements .
Actuarial loss due to liability experience (156) - (156) (80) - (80)
i Actuarial gain due to liability financial
assumption changes 2,046 - 2,046 151 - I 1
B Actuarial gain due to liability demographic )
. assumption changes 9 - 9 71 - )
. ¢ Actuarial loss due to buy-ins - (12) 12) - (25) (25)
RO Return on plan assets (less) than discount rate - (2,269) (2,269) - (184) (184)
L Remeasurement effects recognised in other
e comp_rehensive {expense)/income 1,899 (2,281) (382) 142 (209) (67)
Cash flow
Employer contributions - 2 2 - 7 7
Non Sponsoring entity contributions - - - - - -
Benefits and administration costs paid from
plan assets 510 (510) - 539 (539) -
Net cash flow 510 (508) 2 539 (532) 7
Balance at the end of the year (5,534) 5,951 417 (7,802) 8,587 785
2022 2021
In the balance sheet under £m £m
Fixed assets: Net defined benefit asset 424 794
Post-retirement benefit provisions ) ©) 8)
Current portion of provisions m (1)
Net balance sheet provision 417 785
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23 Post-retirement benefit provisions (continued)

Administrative expenses

The expenses of the funds are borne directly by the Company. Administration expenses are expensed as incurred
and included in Operating income. Administration expenses in 2022 totalled £18 million (2021: £15 million). In
addition, directly incurred asset management expenses in 2022 totalled £2 million (2021: £2 million), which have

been included in Other comprehensive income

DBO at funded and unfunded pension plans

2022 2021

£m £m

‘Wholly or partly funded plans 5,527 7,793
Unfunded plans 7 9
Total 5,534 7,802

Interest costs

Interest costs on DBO for both pensions and other post-retirement benefits, together with the interest income on plan
assets, comprise the net financing income related to post-retirement benefits of £14 million (2021: £11 million), see
Note [7].

Plan assets

2022 2021

£m £m
Percentage of Percentage of
Total total Total total
Debt — fixed interest government bonds 502 9 861 10
Dcbt — index-linked government bonds 552 9 1,176 v 4
Buy-in annuity policies 4,783 80 6,442 5
Cash and cash equivalents 73 1 36 0
Other 41 1 72 1
Total 5,951 100 8,587 100

The government bond debt assets in the table above have quoted prices in active markets, although most are held
through LDI portfolios comprised of such instruments which are not actively traded themselves. The total value of
plan assets not quoted in active markets is £4,783 million (2021: £6,453 million), including the buy-in annuity policies
totalling £4,783 million (2021: £6,442 million) Other unquoted securities, including investments in infrastructure,
totalled £nil million (2021: £11 million). The buy-in annuity policies have a value that is equal to the DBO of the
pensioners covered by the policies. Plan assets did not directly include any of AkzoNobel’s own transferable financial
instruments, nor any property occupied by or assets used by the Company.
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23 Post-retirement benefit provisions (continued)

Pension balances recorded under Fixed Assets: Net defined benefit asset totalled £424 million (2021: £794 million).
The £370 million decrease in 2022 comprised £1 million of pension contributions, £12 million of net credits in the
income statement and £383 million of net actuarial losses in Other comprehensive income in the relevant plans. These
assets could be recognized under IFRIC 14 because economic benefits are available in the form of future refunds from
the plan or reductions in future contributions to the plan, either during the life of the plan or on the (final) settlement
of the plan liabilities

Cash flows

In 2023, we expect to contribute £2 million (2022 actual: £2 million) to our defined benefit plans. This compriseé £2
million (2022 actual: £2 million) of regular contributions and no top-up pension contributions. No allowance is
made for any special one-off contributions that may arise in relation to new de-risking opportunities.

The figures in the table below are the estimated future benefit payments to be paid from the plans to beneficiaries
over the next ten years.

Future benefit payments
Other post-
retirement
Pensions benefits
£m £m
2023 510 -
2024 510 -
2025 510 -
2026 510 -
2027 510 -
2028-2032 2,550 1

59



Imperial Chemical Industries Limited
Registered number 218019
Directors’ Report and Financial Statements

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

23 Post-retirement benefit provisions (continued)

Key figures and assumptions by plan

2022
Other Other post-
pension retirement
ICIPF UK ISCPF UK plans benefits Total
£m £m £m £m £m
Percentage of total DBO 94% 6% 0% 0% 100%
Defined Benefit Obligation (5,194) (333) ©) (1) (5,539)
Fair value of plan assets 5,563 388 - - 5,951
Plan funded status 369 55 ®6) (¢)) 417
Amounts recognised on the balance sheet 369 55 ©) (1) 417
Percentage of total current service cost 86% 14% 0% 0% 100%
Current service cost 2 - - - 2
Employer contributions - 1 1 - 2
Discount rate 4.9% 4.9% 4.5% 5.5% 4.9%
Rate of compensation increase 1.5% 1.4% - - 1.5%
Inflation 3.3% 3.3% 33% - 3.3%
Pension increases 3.1% 3.0% 3.1% - 3.1%
Life expectancy (in years)
Currently aged 60
Males 26.2 27.1 282 26.3 26.3
Females 27.8 292 29.9 27.8 279
Currently aged 45, from age 60
Males 273 28.1 29.2 274 274
Females 29.0 30.3 309 29.0 29.1
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23 Post-retirement benefit provisions (continued)

Key figures and assumptions by plan (continued)

2021
Other Other post-
pension retirement
ICIPF UK ISCPF UK plans benefits Total .

£m £m £m £m £m
Percentage of total DBO 93% 7% 0% 0% 100%
Defined Benefit Obligation (7,282) (510) ® ) (7,802)
Fair value of plan assets 8,003 584 - - 8,587
Plan funded status 721 74 ®) ) 785
Amounts recognised on the balance
sheet 721 74 (8) 2) 788
Percentage of total current service cost 86% 14% 0% 0% 100%
Current service cost 2 1 - - 3
Employer contributions 2 4 1 - 7
Discount rate ’ 1.8% 1.9% - 1.8% 1.9% 1.8%
Rate of compensation increase 1.5% 1.4% - - 1.5%
Inflation 3.5% 3.4% 3.5% - 3.5%
Pension increases 32% 3.1% 32% - 3.2%
Life expectancy (in years)
Curreatly aged 60
Males 26.2 27.0 26.4 26.3 26.3
Females 277 29.2 28.0 27.8 278
Currently aged 45, from age 60
Males 273 28.1 27.5 273 27.4
Females 289 30.2 29.2 29.0 29.0
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Sensitivity of DBO to change in assumptions

2022

Other Other post-

: pension retirement
ICIPF UK  ISCPF UK plans benefits Total
£m £m £m £m £m
Discount rate: 0.5% decrease 242 21 _ - 263
Price inflation: 0.5% increase® 140 13 - - 153
Life expectancy: one year increase from age 60 325 13 - - 338

Maturity information

Weighted average duration of DBO (years) 9.2 - 124 6.2 53 94 -

The actuarially calculated sensitivity effects on DBO shown allows for an alternative value for each assumption while
the other actuarial assumptions remain unchanged. This table illustrates the overall impact on DBO for the changes
shown, which management .assessed could be reasonably possible over a longer term from a sensitivity test
perspective: It should be noted, however; that this analysis.does not indicate any probability of.such changes occurring,
nor does it preclude larger changes in any given period or longer.term. In addition, the significance of the.impact and
‘the'range of:reasonably possible alternative assumptions.may differ.between the different plans:that comprise the total
DBO. In particular, :the plans-differ ‘in benefit design. and average.term, meaning that different:assumptions have
different levels of significance for each plan. . . ’ '
The sensitivity analysis is intended to illustrate the inherent uncertainty in the valuation of the DBO under market
conditions at the measurement date. Its results, in principle, cannot be extrapolated due:to increasing non-linear effects
that changes in the key actuarial assumptions, when deviating further from the assumptions presented, may, have on
.the total DBO. Any management actions that may be taken to mitigate the inherent risks in.the post-retirement defined
benefit plans are not reflected in this analysis, as they would normally be reflected in plan asset changes rather than
DBO changes.

The sensitivities in the table.only apply to the DBO and not to. the net amounts' recognized in the balance. sheet.
Movements in the fair value of plan assets (which include the de-risking instruments) would, to a significant extent,
be expected to offset movements in the DBO resulting from changes in the given assumptions.

The annuity buy-in contracts cover approximately 99 percent of pensioner liabilities' (2021: 99 percent) and 88 percent
of total liabilities at ICIPF (2021: 84 percent) and 98 percent of pensioner liabilities (2021: 98 percent) and 68 percent
(2021: 63 percent) of total liabilities at ISCPF.
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Key plan details of the largest two pension plans

Type of plan
Benefits

Pension increases (main benefit section)

Plan structure

- Governance

Regulatory framework

Funding basis

Latest completed valuation
Funding deficit! at latest completed valuation

Recovery plan

Next funding review

Asset allocation at March 31, 2022
Matching:

Return seeking:

Matching:

Membership at March 31, 2022
Active

Deferred

Pensioner

Total

! Based on local valuation regulations.

ICI Pension Fund, UK

Defined benefit, based upon years of service and final salary
Retirement pension for employee

Dependents’ pensions on death of employee/pensioner
Options for ill health early retirement

Annually linked to UK RPI with a maximum of S percent

Plans are set up under a trust and are tax approved

Trustee directors:

Four member-nominated trustees

Five appointed with the agreement of Law Debenture
One independent (Law Debenture)

The plans are tax approved and assets are held in trust for the
benefit of participants. The trustees have a legal duty to manage the
trust in the best interests of participants. Investment strategy is
controlled by the trustees in consultation with the company

A plan specific basis must be agreed with each trustee board in
accordance with UK regulations. The basis is not the same as the
IFRS calculation as it uses more prudent assumptions about life
expectancy and the discount rates reflect prudent estimates of the
expected return on assets -actually held, thus the trustees’
investment strategies will impact the discounted value, of liabilities
Normally every three years

March 31, 2020

£23 million surplus

As there were sufficient assets to cover the Fund's technical
provisions, a recovery plan is not required.

March 31, 2023 (due to be completed before June 30, 2024)

99.8%

0.2%

Buy-in annuity contracts cover approximately 99% of pensioner
liabilities and 88% of total liabilities

71
5,338
35,032
40,441
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Key plan details of the largest two pension plans

Type of plan
Benefits

Pension increases (main benefit section)

Plan structure

Governance

Regulatory framework

Funding basis

Frequency of funding reviews
Latest valuation

Funding deficit' at latest valuation

Recovery plan

Next funding review

Asset allocation at March 31, 2022
Matching:

Return seeking:

Matching:

Membership at March 31, 2022
Active

Deferred

Pensioner

Total

! Based on local valuation regulations.

ICT Specialty Chemicals Pension Fund, UK

Defined benefit, based upon years of service and final salary
Retirement pension for employee

Dependents’ pensions on death of employee/pensioner
Options for ill health early retirement

Annually linked to UK RPI with a maximum of 5 percent

Plans are set up under a trust and are tax approved

Trustee directors:

Three member-nominated trustees

Three appointed with the agreement of Law Debenture
One independent (Law Debenture)

The plans are tax approved and assets are held in trust for the
benefit of participants. The trustees have a legal duty to manage the
trust in the best interests of participants. Investment strategy is
controlled by the trustees in consultation with the company

A plan specific basis must be agreed with each trustee board in
accordance with UK regulations. The basis is not the same as the
IFRS calculation as it uses more prudent. assumptions about life
expectancy and the discount rates reflect prudent estimates of the
expected retumnm on assets actually held, thus the trustees’
investment strategies will impact the discounted value of liabilities
Normally every three years

March 31, 2020

£7.3 million deficit

£3 million was paid in January 2021 (after a £3m payment in
January 2020, from the previous recovery plan, included in the
latest funding position calculation)

March 31, 2023 (due to be completed before June 30, 2024)

90.5%

9.5%

Buy-in annuity contracts cover approximately 98% of pensioner
liabilities and 68% of total liabilities

16
730
950
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24 Investment in related undertakings
The companies, in which the Company’s interest at 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021 is more than 20%, are
as follows;
Subsidiary undertakings Country of Class of shares Ownership
Incorporation held
2022 2021
Akzo Nobel India Limited** India Equity 50.46% 50.46%
Akzo Nobel (NASH) Limited* England and Wales Ordinary 100% 100%
Akzo Nobel (NSC) Limited* England and Wales Ordinary 100% 100%
Akzo Nobel Packaging Coatings Limited* England and Wales Ordinary 100% 100%
Akzo Nobel Paints Lanka (PVT) Limited** Sri Lanka Ordinary 50.6% 50.6%
Akzo Nobe! Paints (Malaysia) Sdn. Bhd.* Malaysia Ordinary 59.95% 59.95%
Akzo Nobel Vietnam Ltd* Vietnam Ordinary 100% 100%
Cambrian Decorators Supplies (C.D.S.) Limited (in England and Wales Ordinary 100% 100%
liquidation)*
Cambrian SW Limited (in liquidation)* England and Wales Ordinary 100% 100%
Cuprinol Limited (formerly Horseferry Investments England and Wales Ordinary 100% 100%
Limited) *
Dulux B)otswana (Pty) limited* Botswana Class A 100% 100%
Class B 100% 100%
Dulux Limited England and Walcs Ordinary 100% 100%
! Dulux Swaziland (Pty) Limited* Swaziland Capital 99.98% 99.98%
: Dulux Zambia (2005) Limited* Zambia Ordinary 99.6% 99.6%
Ergon Investments International Limited* England and Wales Ordinarv 100% 100%
Ergon Investments UK Limited England and Wales Ordinary 100% 100%
i Hammerite Products Limited England and Wales Ordinary 100% 100%
Horseferry Investments Limited (formerly Cuprinol England and Wales Ordinary 100% 100%
Fyah Limited) (in liquidation)
e ICHEM Reinsurance Company Limited Cayman Islands Ordinary 100% 100%
ICI Chemicals & Polymers Limited* England and Wales Ordinary 100% 100%
ICI Fertilisers (Ireland) Limited Ireland Ordinary 99.9% 99.9%
ICTI Finance Limited England and Wales Ordinary 100% 100%
Preference 100% 100%
ICI India Research and Technology Centre* India Voting Only 25% 25%
ICI International Investments Limited Cayman Islands Ordinary 100% 100%
[CI International Limited England and Wales Ordinary 100% 100%
ICl1 Ireland Limited* Ireland Ordinary 100% 100%
ICI North America Limited (formerly Polycell Limited) (in England and Wales Ordinary 100% 100%
liquidation
Ig] Paints ()T rade Contract) Limited* England and Wales Ordinary 100% 100%



Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

24 Investment in related undertakings (continued)
Subsidiary undertakings Country of
Incorporation
ICI Theta BV* Netherlands
Intex Yarns (Manufacturing) Limited* England and Wales ’
Impkemix Trustee Limited Guemsey
J.P. McDougall & Co. Limited* England and Wales
Metlac S.p.A.* Italy
Mortar Investments International Limited England and Wales
Mortar Investments UK Limited England and Wales
Pinturas Coral De Bolivia Ltda* Bolivia

Polycell Products Limited (formerly ICI North
Limited)

Sales Support Group Limited*

Scottish Agricultural Industries Limited*
Stevenston Holdings Limited

Subsidiary undertakings

Akzo Nobel India Limited**

Akzo Nobel (NASH) Limited*

Akzo Nobel (NSC) Limited*

Akzo Nobel Packaging Coatings Limited*

Akzo Nobel Paints Lanka (PVT) Limited**

Akzo Nobel Paints (Malaysia) Sdn. Bhd.*

America England and Wales

England and Wales
England and Wales
England and Wales

Registered Office Address

Imperial Chemical Industries Limited
Registered number 218019
Directors’ Report and Financial Statements

Class of shares
held
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary

Ordinary
Ordinary

Ownership
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
44.44% 44.44%
100% 100%
100% 100%
99.49% 99.49%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%

Limited by Registration

shares
guarantee

Geetanjali Apartment, 8 B, Middleton  Shares

Street

Kolkata

700 071

India

The AkzoNobel Building,
Wexham Road

Slough

SL2 5DS

United Kingdom

The AkzoNobel Building,
Wexham Road

Slough

SL2 5DS

United Kingdom

The AkzoNobel Building,
Wexham Road

Slough

SL2 SDS

United Kingdom

CIC House, 199 Kew Road
Colombo 2

Sri Lanka

Shares

Shares

Shares

Shares

Lot 5827, Kawasan Perindustrian Nilai Shares

Nilai
71800
Malaysia

66

or number

L24292WB19

54PLC021516

1000836

226707

59837

PV 4610

3393-V

Public
private

Public

Private

Private

Private

Private

Private

or
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24 Investment in related undertakings (continued)

Subsidiary undertakings Registered Office Address Limited by Registration Public or
sharesor  number private
guarantee

Akzo Nobel Vietnam Ltd* Lot E-1-CN, My Phuoc IT Industrial Shares 462043000572 Private

Park, Ben Cat District
Binh Duong
Vietnam
Cambrian Decorators Supplies (C.D.S.) The AkzoNobel Building, Shares 629568 Private
Limited (in liquidation)* Wexham Road
Slough
SL2 5DS
United Kingdom
Cambrian SW Limited (in liquidation)* The AkzoNobel Building, Shares 11206314 Private
‘Wexham Road
Slough
SL2 5DS
United Kingdom
Horseferry Investments Limited (formerly The AkzoNobel Building, Shares 2306148 Private
Cuprinol Limited) (in liquidation) * Wexham Road
Slough
SL2 5DS
United Kingdom
Dulux Botswana (Pty) Limited* Haile Selassie Road Shares Co. 1855 Private
Gaborone
Botswana
Dulux Limited ' The AkzoNobel Building, Shares 2048463 Private
Wexham Road '
Slough
SL2 5DS
United Kingdom
Dulux Swaziland (Pty) Limited* 10th Street Industrial Site Shares 7/1966 Private
Matsapha
Swaziland
Dulux Zambia (2005) Limited* Plot no. 290 Nampungwe Road, Off Shares 60107 Private
Mumbwa Road, Chinika
Lusaka
10101
Zambia
Ergon Investments Intemnational Limited* The AkzoNobel Building, Shares 2074788 Private
Wexham Road
Slough
SL2 5DS
United Kingdom
Ergon Investments UK Limited The AkzoNobel Building, Shares 2074787 Private
Wexham Road
Slough
SL2 5DS
United Kingdom
Hammerite Products Limited The AkzoNobel Building, Shares 2781134 Private
Wexham Road
Slough
SL2 5DS
United Kingdom
Cuprinol Limited (formerly Horseferry The AkzoNobel Building, Shares 03756457 Private
Investments Limited)* Wexham Road
Slough
SL2 5DS
United Kingdom
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24 Investment in related undertakings (continued)

Subsidiary undertakings

ICHEM Reinsurance Company Limited

ICI Chemicals & Polymers Limited*

ICI Fertilisers (Ireland) Limited

ICI Finance Limited

1CI India Research and Technology
Centre*

ICI Interpational Investments Limited

ICI International Limited

ICI Ireland Limited*

Polycell Limited (formerly ICI North
America Limited)

Registered Office Address

94 Solaris Avenue, Second Floor,
PO Box 69
Camana Bay
Cayman Islands
The AkzoNobel Building,
Wexham Road
Slough
SL2 5DS
United Kingdom
Shandon Works, Commons Road
Cork
Ireland
The AkzoNobel Building,
Wexham Road
Slough
SL2 5DS
United Kingdom
Plot No. 1/1, TTC Industrial Area,
Thane Belapur Road,
12 Koparkhaime
Navi Mumbai
400709
India
PO Box 309 Ugland House,
South Church Street
George Town
KY1-1104
Cayman Islands
The AkzoNobel Building,
Wexham Road ’
Slough
SL2 5DS
United Kingdom
Shandon Works, Commons Road
Cork
Ireland
The AkzoNobel Building,
Wexham Road
Slough
SL2 5DS
United Kingdom
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Limited by Registration

" shares or

guarantee

Shares

Shares

Shares

Shares

Shares

Shares

Shares

Shares

Shares

number -

#1070

358535

115416

45690

U73100MHI19
76PTCO019199

26631

2766927

196184

989786

Public or
private

Private

Private

Private

Private

Private

Private

Private

Private

Private
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24 Investment in related undertakings (continued)

Subsidiary undertakings Registered Office Address Limited by Registration  Public or
shares or number private
guarantee

ICI Paints (Trade Contract) Limited* The AkzoNobel Building, Shares =~ 2881641 Private

Wexham Road
Slough
SL2 5DSUnited Kingdom
ICI Theta BV* The AkzoNobel Building, Shares 24171758 Private
Wexham Road
Slough
SL2 5DS
United Kingdom .
Impkemix Trustee Limited P.O. Box 25, Regency Court, Glategny Shares 28405 Private
’ Esplanada, GY1 3AP Saint Peter Port
Guemnsey
Intex Yarns (Manufacturing) Limited* The AkzoNobel Building, Shares 137784 Private
. Wexham Road
i Slough
SL2 5DS
’ United Kingdom
- J.P. McDougall & Co. Limited* The AkzoNobel Building, - Shares 254941 Private
PO : Wexham Road
Slough
SL2 5DS
United Kingdom
Metlac S.p.A.* Strada Statale 35 Bis dei Giovi Shares 01264360064  Private
. Bosco Marengo
53-15062
Italy .
Mortar Investments International Limited The AkzoNobel Building, Shares 2767051 Private
Wexham Road
Stough
SL2 5DS
United Kingdom
Mortar Investments UK Limited The AkzoNobel Building, Shares 2767052 Private
Wexham Road
Slough
SL2 5DS
United Kingdom
Pinturas Coral De Bolivia Ltda* Parque Industrial Pi 24 Shares NIT Private
: Santa Cruz de la Sierra 1015213026
Bolivia : .
ICI North America Limited (formerly The AkzoNobel Building, Shares 521214 Private
Polycell Products Limited) (in liquidation) =~ Wexham Road
Slough
SL2 5DS
United Kingdom
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24 Investment in related undertakings (continued)

Subsidiary undertakings Registered Office Address Limited by Registration  Public or
) ‘shares or  number private
guarantee
Sales Support Group Limited* The AkzoNobel Building, Shares 891336 Private
Wexham Road
Slough
SL2 5DS
v United Kingdom
Scottish Agricultural Industries Limited* Clyde & Co, Albany House, 58 Shares SC15365 Private
. Albany St o
Edinburgh
EH1 3QR
United Kingdom
Stevenston Holdings Limited Clyde & Co, Albany House, 58 Shares SC48881 Private
Albany St
Edinburgh
EHI 3QR
United Kingdom

*Held by Subsidiaries
**Equity
# The Company sold 100% of the share capital in ICI Insurance Company Limited on 7 Apnil 2021

Indirect Subsidiary Activities

On 12 January 2022, the Company’s indirectly owned subsidiaries changed name: Cuprinol Limited changed name
to Horseferry Investments Limited, and the former Horseferry Investments Limited was renamed Cuprinol Limited;
Polycell Products Limited changed name to ICI North America Limited and the former ICI North America Limited
was renamed Polycell Products Limited.

On 1 March 2022, ICI Limited, an indirectly owned subsidiary changed its name to Canliq 3 Limited and was placed
into Member’s Voluntary Liquidation on 30 March 2022.

On 9 December 2022, Horseferry Investments (formerly Cuprinol Limited) and [CI North America Limited (formerly
Polycell Products Limited) were placed into Members® Voluntary Liquidation.

25 Operating leases

The toll manufacturing arrangement the Company has with another group company is partly accounted for as an
operating lease arrangement as per IFRIC 4, where the Company is the lessor. This lease extends to its production
facilities and the agreement has an indefinite end date, with either party able to cancel anytime with 6 months’ notice.
As there is no formal lease agreement in place between the parties, there are no set minimum contractual lease
payments.

26 Ultimate parent company and parent undertaking of larger group of which the Company is a
member

The Company is a wholly owned subsidiary company of Akzo Nobel ICI Holdings, a company incorporated in
England and Wales.

The only group in which the results of the Company are consolidated is that headed by the ultimate parent company,
Akzo Nobel N.V., incorporated in the Netherlands.

Copies of the Akzo Nobel N.V. Annual Report and Financial statements are available to the public and may be
obtained from Christian Neefestraat 2, 1077 WW, Amsterdam, Netherlands or online at:
https.//akzonobel.com/en/investors
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

27 Post Balance Sheet Events

On 19" January 2023, Horseferry Investments Limited (formerly Cuprinol Limited) was dissolved.

On 8" February 2023, Scottish Agricultural Industries Limited terminated deposit facility arrangements-with ICI

Finance Limited and declared an interim dividend of £7,270,999 to its shareholder, ICI Chemicals & Polymers
Limited.

"@n 19" April 2023, Scottish Agricultural Industries Limited was placed into Members’ Voluntary Liquidation.
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